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VISION STATEMENT

PWP will be a valued 
community asset, an 
exceptional employer, 
a partner in Pasadena’s 
prosperous future, and 
contribute to the quality 
of life in Pasadena.

MISSION STATEMENT

PWP is committed to 
providing safe and reliable 
water and power with 
superior customer service 
at reasonable rates.

AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

Received the Treeline USA Award for power line clearance practices for the 14th 

consecutive year.

Maintained the prestigious Reliable Public Power Provider (RP
3

®) Diamond designation from 

American Public Power Association for providing the highest degree of reliable, safe 

electric service.

Received the Award of Merit for Excellence in Public Power Communications from 

the American Public Power Association for PWP’s Fiscal Year 2015 Annual Report.

WATER
Service Area Population 165,909

Service Area Square Miles 26

Number of Miles of Water Mains 520

Number of Wells 17

Number of Reservoirs 14

Total Reservoir Capacity (gallons) 110,000,000

Number of Treatment Plants 1

Number of Booster Stations 19

Peak Day in Acre Feet (Sept 2006) 147

Current Year Peak Day in Acre Feet (August 5, 2015) 93

Number of Services 37,959

Residential Usage (gallons-per-capita per day) 84.6

POWER
Service Area Population 141,023

Service Area Square Miles 23

Number of Distribution Miles 684

Number of Subtransmission Miles 80

Number of Poles 11,163

Number of Receiving Stations 3

Number of Substations 11

Peak Day (September 2010) 320

Current Year Peak Day (September 9, 2015) 307

Number of Services 65,318
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FOR THE PAST SIX MONTHS, I have had the privilege of leading Pasadena Water and Power (“PWP”) as 

the Interim General Manager. I am one of the Assistant General Managers who will fulfill this exciting 

role on a rotating basis during the selection process for a permanent General Manager. Having served 

as PWP’s Manager of Finance, Administration, and Customer Service since 2006, it has been an honor 

and a great opportunity to provide leadership during Fiscal Year 2016 as PWP continued to achieve 

remarkable milestones, embark on new opportunities, and develop innovative solutions that will take 

Pasadena’s valued community-owned utility into tomorrow.

PWP is constantly balancing priorities as we are challenged with limited natural resources, increasingly 

stringent environmental and regulatory restrictions, rising costs, and budget management, with the 

mission to ensure that we continue to deliver the highest quality electric and water services at affordable 

rates. During Fiscal Year 2016, PWP generated over $250 million in operating revenues, and more than 

$75 million was invested in capital utility infrastructure improvements.

Construction was also completed on the Glenarm Repowering Project in June 2016. The extensive 

power plant upgrade, which celebrated its groundbreaking two years earlier, replaced an aging boiler/

steam turbine, with a new, highly efficient, combined-cycle generator that will deliver 71 MW (net 

68 MW) of clean power to Pasadena. This project represents one of the largest public construction jobs 

in recent years in Pasadena, and also provided significant success in local hiring and material purchases. 

Commercial operation is expected in December 2016.

Due to improving drought conditions, Pasadena’s state-mandated 28 percent conservation target 

ended in early June 2016. However, to plan for the recurring nature of California droughts, Pasadena’s 

Level 2 Water Shortage Plan and associated Water Waste Ordinance remained in effect to help ensure 

both short- and long-term water supply reliability. PWP continues to monitor conditions and make 

recommendations to adjust the Plan, as necessary.

The City Council certified the Environmental Impact Report and continued with the design phase of 

the Non-Potable Water Project, a recycled water source that could eventually deliver up to 10 percent 

of Pasadena’s water supply through a pipeline connection between Pasadena and the Los Angeles-

Glendale Water Reclamation Plant. PWP has applied for a combination of state and federal grants and 

low interest loans to cover the $20-25 million cost to construct Phase 1 of the project.

Water conservation and energy efficiency continue to be the focus of public outreach, and PWP is 

actively engaged with the community to promote these messages. PWP conducted approximately 50 

events, workshops, and school events in Fiscal Year 2016 to help educate the public about conservation. 

Customers also received almost $5 million in rebates for purchasing qualifying water- and energy-saving 

home devices and retrofits.

I am truly grateful for the opportunity to have served as Interim General Manager and sincerely 

appreciate the support of the citizens and businesses of Pasadena, City leaders, and PWP staff during 

the transition. Now, as always, we remain committed to our most important priority — bringing safe, 

reliable, and affordable water and electric services to the Pasadena community.

A MESSAGE FROM INTERIM GENERAL MANAGER 
SHARI M. THOMAS
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BALANCING OUR PRIORITIES

Balancing immediate needs with future planning has been a part of Pasadena Water and 
Power’s (“PWP”) operating outlook since its inception in 1906. For 110 years, PWP has 
managed the challenges of the present while looking toward the future — transforming 
yesterday’s single generator street lighting provider to the full service water and power 
utility that it is today. Fiscal Year 2016 is now a part of PWP’s history, and, like in every 
preceding year, changing conditions prompted revised courses of action. However, while 
priorities are always subject to realignment, PWP remains steadfast on the course it 
developed long ago — to consistently provide Pasadena with the highest quality utility 
services at competitive rates.

Scarce natural resources and ever-changing environmental and regulatory 

constraints continue to challenge utilities like PWP. Measures such as SB 

350 (de León) and SB 32 (Pavley), which mandate increased investment 

in renewable energy and more aggressive greenhouse gas reduction, 

respectively, call for reprioritization of resource planning. Similarly, the 

California drought and associated water use restrictions continue to 

drive new and ongoing water conservation projects and committed 

public outreach.

In Fiscal Year 2016, construction was completed on the highly anticipated 

Glenarm Repowering Project, a new power plant upgrade that features 

replacement of an aging steam generator with a highly efficient, 

clean-power generator. PWP also completed a major well connection 

project that centralizes water from several wells for treatment at a new 

disinfection facility and blending with imported water at Jones Reservoir. 

In addition, PWP continued to upgrade and replace utility infrastructure 

as outlined in its water and power capital improvement plans to ensure 

ongoing service reliability.

The priorities of today will continue to be influenced by a myriad of 

business, regulatory, and environmental conditions. As a result, existing 

plans may be amended or discarded as new models are developed 

and adopted. However, one overriding priority has never changed and 

drives every PWP decision and action — to remain a valued asset to the 

Pasadena community.

KEY ACCOMPLISHMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016

Completed construction of the Glenarm Repowering 
Project, an extensive power plant upgrade that will 
provide Pasadena with 71 MW (net 68 MW) of clean, 
natural gas-fueled power.

Obtained City Council approval of the Environmental 
Impact Report for the Non-Potable Water Project, 
allowing PWP to move forward with Phase 1. At 
full build-out, the project could meet approximately 
10 percent of Pasadena’s overall water use.

Achieved a Renewable Portfolio Standard (“RPS”) of 
28 percent in Calendar Year 2015, moving Pasadena 
closer to the the target of 50 percent by 2030 as 
mandated by SB 350.

Launched a variety of programs to help customers conserve 
water, most notably the Laundry to Landscape greywater 
program that features the recycling of laundry water for 
landscape irrigation use.

Commissioned 20 MW of utility-scale solar power from 
the Kingbird Solar “A” Project.

Completed the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan, 
an analysis of long-term water supply and demand 
planning for Pasadena.

Continued to upgrade PWP’s infrastructure through the 
Water and Power Master Plans.

Installed global positioning system (“GPS”) devices on 
all assets to improve the collection of vehicle location, 
route, engine, and fuel consumption data.

Continued active public outreach to keep the 
community informed about water and energy issues.
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LEGISLATIVE SUMMARY 

PWP regularly tracks and monitors state and federal bills as well as policy issues to 
keep informed and engaged in legislative matters affecting the utility industry. During 
Fiscal Year 2016, 461 state bills related to greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emission reductions, 
renewable energy requirements, energy efficiency, electric vehicles, net energy metering, 
drought response, and water conservation were tracked. PWP took formal positions on 
60 bills, and 157 were signed into law. In the federal arena, PWP monitored bills on topics 
including cybersecurity and hydropower development.

SB 350 

Further demonstrating California’s commitment 

to clean energy, SB 350 (de León) increases the 

required use of renewables to 50 percent of all 

power sources by 2030.  

• PWP achieved a Renewable Portfolio Standard 

(“RPS”) of 28 percent in Calendar Year 2015 

and is well positioned to meet the new mandate. 

SB 350 also calls for California’s electric grid to 

evolve into a regional system with other western 

states to make better use of resources, especially 

renewables.  

• Implementation has been delayed until the 

feasibility of grid regionalization can be further 

evaluated.

• PWP and other publicly owned utilities continue 

to participate in stakeholder meetings to influence 

the development of an appropriate, achievable 

plan for the Legislature to consider in 2017.

GREENHOUSE GAS

AB 32 (Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006) 

requires California to reduce GHG emissions to 

1990 levels by 2020. 

• By calendar year 2015, PWP had reduced 

emissions by 36 percent compared to 1990 levels.  

SB 32 (Pavley), which was signed into law in 

2016, has presented California with an even 

greater challenge — reducing emissions to 40 

percent below 1990 levels by 2030. This is the 

most aggressive benchmark set by any North 

American government.

• PWP’s reduction goal of 60 percent by 2030, as 

outlined in its Integrated Resource Plan (“IRP”), 

exceeds the state goal.

AB 197 (E. Garcia) requires the California Air 

Resources Board (“CARB”) to identify the 

cost effectiveness of GHG emissions reduction 

measures — including any avoided social costs 

— and prioritize reductions from mobile and 

stationary sources, including power plants.  

• It is currently unclear how averted climate 

change resulting from emission reductions 

would be quantified or regulated.  

• As CARB continues to assess the social cost of 

carbon, PWP is monitoring developments to 

understand how targets and reporting will be 

developed and achieved.

PWP publishes its Power Content Label annually 

showing the mix of renewables and conventional 

sources of electric power for both Pasadena and 

California. AB 1110 (Ting) mandates the addition 

of GHG emissions reporting to the Power Content 

Label and would require PWP to disclose the 

emissions intensity of its electricity portfolio. 

• The accounting methodology has not yet been 

determined and PWP continues to be engaged 

as the process is developed.

NERC 
Develops Standards in 

Collaboration with Utility Industry

FERC 
Identifies Potential Risks and 

Issues Directives for Standards 
Development.

WECC 
Enforces Standards

PWP is already prepared for the newly passed 

SB 814 (Hill), which requires urban retail water 

suppliers to have a rate structure in place to 

identify excessive residential water use, and SB 

1028 (Hill), which requires publicly owned electric 

utilities to develop a wildfire mitigation plan.  

• PWP discourages excessive water use through 

its existing tiered rate structure.

• PWP’s wildfire mitigation plan, which was 

developed in collaboration with the Pasadena 

Fire Department, has been in place for years.

The North American Electric 
Reliability Corporation 
(“NERC”) assures the 
reliability and security of the 
interconnected bulk power 
system in the United States, 
Canada, and Baja California.  
Based on directives from the 
Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission (“FERC”), 
NERC develops standards 
in collaboration with 
utility industry experts, in 
addition to monitoring 
the grid system, and 
educating and certifying 
power industry personnel. 
PWP is in the Western 
Interconnection, whose 
Regional Entity, the Western 
Electricity Coordinating 
Council (“WECC”), audits 
performance and enforces 
standards on behalf of 
NERC. In Fiscal Year 2016, 
PWP again maintained 
compliance with more than 
450 standards and 1,200 
requirements through self-
certification, monitoring, 
and improved policies 
and procedures, as well as 
successful completion of 
NERC and WECC audits. 
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GT-5 is a state-of-the-art, 
clean-power resource that 
will enable Pasadena to 
integrate intermittent 
renewable resources, 
such as wind and solar, 
while enhancing system 
reliability.

POWER RESOURCES  

GLENARM REPOWERING PROJECT
Construction was 
completed on the 
Glenarm Repowering 
Project, an extensive 
power plant upgrade 
featuring replacement 
of the 50-year-old 
“Broadway 3” steam 
generating unit with 
a highly efficient 
71 MW (net 68 MW) 
combined-cycle, 
natural gas-fueled 
turbine (“GT-5”). This 
significant capital 
improvement project 

satisfies one of the major goals of the Integrated Resource Plan (“IRP”), PWP’s long-range 
power supply strategy. Featuring the lowest emissions of any generator in its class, and 
quick-start capability that can generate power in minutes, GT-5 is a state-of-the-art, clean 
power resource that will enable Pasadena to integrate intermittent renewable resources, 
such as wind and solar, while enhancing system reliability. The project also featured 
extensive local participation, with 20 percent of certified payroll and 52 percent of project 
procurement, respectively, going to Pasadena residents and businesses. GT-5 is expected 
to be online in December 2016.

BROADWAY GT-5

Technology Boiler/steam turbine
Combined-cycle, 
natural gas turbine

Start-Up Time 72 hours 10 minutes

Stack Gas NOx 30 parts per million 2 parts per million

GHG Emissions (MT CO2) 0.632 per Net MWh 0.395 per Net MWh

Minimum Run Time 72 Hours 6 Hours

Generator Response Time 1.92 Megawatts per minute ~9 Megawatts per minute
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POWER RESOURCES

RENEWABLE ENERGY

PWP’s IRP specifies a diversified mix of renewables that includes wind, solar, landfill gas, hydropower, 

geothermal, and bio-methane with an aggressive RPS target of 40 percent by 2020. In Calendar Year 

2015, PWP achieved an RPS of 28 percent and is on track to reach both the IRP and state goals.

One utility-scale solar project became operational during the fiscal year with two smaller projects 

expected to come online in summer 2016. Kingbird “A,” a 20 MW commercial project commissioned 

in May 2016, will produce annual power equivalent to the energy consumption of over 9,000 Pasadena 

homes. Combined, the new projects will bring PWP’s total contracted solar capacity to over 36 MW, 

comprising nearly 20 percent of PWP’s renewable energy portfolio.

PWP RENEWABLE ENERGY PORTFOLIO SUMMARY (GWh per year)

Renewable Resources CY 2015 CY 20161 CY 20172 Current Status Contract Type

Hydropower

Azusa Hydro 0.1 0.0 0.0 Online PWP

Wind

High Wind 12.8 11.7 13.0 Online PWP

Milford I 10.0 12.0 10.2 Online SCPPA

Short Term Energy Purchase 38.0 40.0

Landfill Gas

West Covina/Tulare 44.9 48.8 0.0 Online PWP

Chiquita Canyon 39.2 39.3 37.3 Online SCPPA

Puente Hills 61.8 Online 2017 SCPPA

Geothermal

Heber South 15.0 16.0 15.9 Online SCPPA

Short Term Energy Purchase 26.1 29.7 57.0 Online PWP

Solar

Windsor Reservoir Solar 0.8 0.7 Online PWP

Columbia II Solar 7.4 7.6 Online SCPPA

Kingbird Solar A Project 39.6 36.5 Online PWP

Antelope Big Sky Ranch Solar 5.6 15.9 Online mid-2016 SCPPA

Summer Solar 7.1 15.9 Online mid-2016 SCPPA

Bio-methane

EDF Offline PWP

Sequent 27.5 3.7 0.0 Online PWP

Waste Management 21.7 22.2 0.0 Online PWP

REC Only

Falls Creek 43.0 Effective 1/1/2017

Purchased 109.91 40 4.2 Online PWP

Total Renewable 307.23 321.89 359.13

Next IRP goal: 
40% by 2020

Retail Sales 1097.4 1,072.0 1,103.5

% Renewable 28.0% 30.0% 32.5%

% IRP Renewable Target 28.0% 30.0% 32.5%

CY=Calendar Year; SCPPA=Southern California Public Power Authority
1 Preliminary Only
2 Forecast Only
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POWER RESOURCES

GREENHOUSE GAS/CAP-AND-TRADE

In Calendar Year 2015, PWP had reduced state-

verified GHG emissions by more than 30 percent 

compared to 1990 levels and is well under way 

to achieving the City Council-adopted GHG 

reduction goal of 60 percent below 1990 levels 

by 2030. PWP also participates in California’s 

Cap-and-Trade program and received positive 

verifications for both facility and electric emissions 

for CY 2015 from the California Air Resources 

Board. However, with AB 197 (E. Garcia) signed 

into law with vaguely stated emissions reduction 

requirements for large stationary GHG sources 

such as power plants, it is unknown how the 

Cap-and-Trade Program will be affected in the 

future. PWP continues to follow developments 

as the measures and targets are developed.

ALISO CANYON GAS LEAK

In response to the temporary closure of the 

Southern California Gas Aliso Canyon Natural 

Gas Storage Facility resulting from an October 

2015 gas leak, PWP relied on its valued 

partnership with the community to develop a 

mitigation plan. In collaboration with Pasadena’s 

large commercial customers, load curtailment 

plans were developed to coordinate voluntary 

reduction of electric use during critical, high-

demand times, such as the summer months. 

At this time, supplies to PWP have not been 

affected. However, the plan has been adopted 

and is now included in PWP’s Electric Load-

Shedding Plan.

Developing a strong safety 
culture is the cornerstone 
of a successful safety 
plan, and participation 
in PWP’s robust program 
is mandatory for all 
employees.

We are well on our way 
to achieving our goal 
of reducing greenhouse 
gas by 60% below 1990 
levels by 2030.

SAFETY — ALWAYS A PRIORITY

When it comes to balancing priorities, the safety of employees and the community is at 
the core of every plan, decision, and action. On any day, utility field workers encounter 
dangerous, hazardous conditions, such as high voltage wires, underground vaults, high water 
pressure, and sewage. It is imperative that employees understand the risks associated with 
their jobs and receive the appropriate training to ensure safe job performance and sound 

workmanship. Developing a strong safety culture is the 
cornerstone of a successful safety plan, and participation 
in PWP’s robust program is mandatory for all employees. 
Monthly safety meetings and associated testing focus on 
a variety of job-specific topics, such as heavy equipment 
handling, hand tool safety, rescue techniques, respiratory 
protection, injury prevention, blood-borne pathogens, and 
ergonomics. PWP has implemented all programs mandated 
by the California Division of Occupational Safety and 
Health (“Cal/OSHA”) and conducts annual self-audits on 
these programs for effectiveness. In addition, Cal/OSHA is 
adopting federal utility industry safety regulations to further 
enhance and improve the programs of California utilities. 
PWP proactively monitors developments to ensure that new 
requirements are implemented timely and effectively.
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WATER AND POWER MASTER PLAN UPDATES

PWP continues to improve the capacity, efficiency, and safety of Pasadena’s water and 
power infrastructure as prescribed by the 18-year Water Distribution System Master 
Plan and 20-year Electric Distribution System Master Plan. Adopted by the City Council 
in 2002 and 2005 respectively, these operating blueprints identify and prioritize critical 
infrastructure requirements, such as system maintenance, upgrades, and expansion. They 
also provide a framework for the associated resource planning, best business practices, 
and organizational preparedness necessary to ensure ongoing plan execution. This 
strategic, long-term approach ensures that the necessary infrastructure and resources 
will be in place to support current and future needs.

PWP invested over $61 million in power-related capital improvements in Fiscal Year 2016 
and almost 14 percent of that amount was related to the Master Plan. Likewise, PWP 
spent almost $14 million on water-related capital improvements, with more than 78 
percent related to the Master Plan.

Actual Expenditures 
Water Master Plan Projects (in millions)

FY16

FY15

FY14

FY13

FY12

$10.7

$4.5

$15.6

$11.3

$7.4

0 5 10 15 20

WATER MASTER PLAN ACCOMPLISHMENTS

• Replaced almost 3 miles of aging distribution mains

• Completed replacement of the Murray-Hydro 
Pneumatic Zone Tank and booster pump

• Improved meter reading efficiency by replacing 
approximately 4,000 meters with new Automatic 
Meter Readers, and 10,000 Encoder Receiver 
Transmitter radio-based end points that enable 
drive-by reading

• Completed construction on the Eastside Well 
Collector Disinfection Facility

• Procured perchlorate treatment equipment for the 
Monk Hill Treatment Plant

• Completed pipeline installation and design work 
for the Arroyo Seco Canyon Project

Actual Expenditures 
Power Master Plan Projects (in millions)

FY16

FY15

FY14

FY13

FY12

$8.3

$9.3

$9.9

$17.1

$12.0
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POWER MASTER PLAN ACCOMPLISHMENTS

• Completed commissioning activities for the GT-5 
Repowering Project, including installation of power and 
control protection equipment, and 34kV and 17kV feeds

• Replaced 11 power poles, 26 transformers, 12 
distribution switches, 3.38 miles of underground 
cable, and 1.65 miles of overhead conductors 

• Completed replacement of two 34kV circuit breakers 
and two 34kV capacitor bank switches

• Continued to add automation to the distribution 
system with the installation of underground/overhead 
fault indicators and switches featuring new relays, 
over-current protection, and remote Supervisory 
Control and Data Acquisition (“SCADA”) functionality

• Completed the 4kV to 17kV circuit conversions for Hill 
Avenue and Alpine Street Utility Undergrounding Districts 
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The Non-Potable Water 
Project will reduce 
Pasadena’s reliance on 
imported water, maximize 
local supplies, and provide 
a drought-proof water 
source.

Potable Water

Blending

Disinfection

Jones 
Reservoir

MWD

Local Groundwater 
(6 wells)

WATER RESOURCES 

SAFE DRINKING WATER

Compliance with drinking water regulations 

is a top priority initiative, and PWP continually 

performs approved testing and reporting to 

ensure that customers receive the highest quality 

water. Data from Pasadena’s distribution system 

and treatment plants is collected regularly and 

reported monthly to regulatory agencies.

PWP is also one of a small number of permitted 

water purveyors that operates its own state-

accredited Water Quality Laboratory. A significant 

number of required water quality tests are 

performed in house by PWP chemists.

During Fiscal Year 2016, well water accounted for 

approximately 42 percent of Pasadena’s water sales, 

with 58 percent imported from the Metropolitan 

Water District (“MWD”) of Southern California, and 

less than one percent from other sources.

NON-POTABLE WATER PROJECT

The Pasadena City Council certified the 

Environmental Impact Report and continued with 

the design phase of the Non-Potable Water Project, 

a new water source that could provide up to 10 

percent of Pasadena’s water supply at full build-out. 

The six-phase, 20-year project will connect Pasadena 

to water originating at the Los Angeles-Glendale 

Water Reclamation Plant, providing a sustainable 

water source for public landscape irrigation, 

cooling, and other industrial purposes. The project 

will reduce Pasadena’s reliance on imported water, 

maximize local supplies, and provide a drought-

proof water source.

Funding to cover the $20-25 million cost to 

construct Phase I of the project is being pursued 

through a combination of grants from the State 

Water Resources Control Board (Proposition 1) 

and the US Bureau of Reclamation (Title XVI), 

and low interest loans from the California Clean 

Water State Revolving Fund loan program.

ARROYO SECO CANYON PROJECT

Improvements made to the Arroyo Seco Canyon 

Project, a $9 million collaborative effort between 

PWP and the Arroyo Seco Foundation, included 

installation of a quarter-mile of potable water 

distribution pipeline for storm water runoff, 

continued design of a new recreational parking 

area, and new spreading basins. This undertaking 

is intended to upgrade the Arroyo Seco stream 

water intake structure which will improve the 

opportunity to capture more stream water and 

recharge the groundwater basin.

EASTSIDE WELL COLLECTOR PROJECT 

PWP’s Eastside Well Collector Project was 

completed in FY16 and is now operational. 

Featuring a 3.5-mile pipeline that transports 

water from several local wells to a new 

disinfection facility at Jones Reservoir, the 

new connection centralizes the chloramine 

treatment and blending with imported 

water from the Metropolitan Water District 

of Southern California (“MWD”) in one 

location. In addition to added operational 

flexibility, the process improves the reliability 

of groundwater well production and provides 

more consistent water quality.

WATER RATE INCREASE

Increases to the Purchased Water Adjustment 

Charge (“PWAC”) and the Capital Improvements 

Charge (“CIC”) were approved by City Council 

in an effort to keep water revenues aligned 

with costs. PWP water customers experienced 

an increase of $0.05 per billing unit effective 

October 1, 2015, due to a PWAC adjustment 

designed to offset the increased cost of water 

purchased from the Metropolitan Water District of 

Southern California. Similarly, a CIC rate increase 

of $0.36 per billing unit became effective January 

18, 2016, to help recover revenue losses resulting 

from conservation-related water sales reductions.
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CONSERVATION AND OUTREACH

California officials recognize that although water supply conditions have improved 
with record rainfall, the state is still recovering from its five-year drought, and thus 
are maintaining the emergency drought declaration and strengthening long-term 
conservation planning. Pasadena remains committed to water conservation, maintaining 
the Level 2 Water Shortage Plan enacted in 2015 and recently adopting amendments 
to the Water Waste Ordinance to include additional permanent water conservation 
measures. Restrictions and prohibitions address outdoor watering, mandatory leak 
repairs, runoff, and commercial water use.

PWP continued to provide residents and businesses with energy- and water-saving information and 

rebates to help achieve conservation goals while keeping customer costs reasonable. The utility 

offered approximately 50 events, workshops, and school programs in addition to money-saving 

rebates, sessions, rebate programs, an electronic newsletter, and student programs focused on 

conservation. By engaging the community through awareness campaigns and rebate programs, 

PWP was able to make notable achievements that both benefit customers and help meet conservation 

and efficiency goals.

WATER PROGRAMS AND REBATES

Through attractive rebates, PWP incentivized 

customers to install more than 3,060 water-

saving devices with associated annual water 

savings of more than 12 million gallons, and 

to remove over 1.4 million square feet of 

turf, saving 187 acre feet of water annually. 

In addition, the Multifamily Retrofit Program 

replaced 19,000 non-efficient showerheads 

and 38,000 kitchen and bathroom aerators 

with low flow devices, saving approximately 

226 acre feet of water annually.

Laundry to Landscape, an innovative greywater 

workshop series and rebate program featuring washing machine retrofits that produce landscape 

irrigation, was launched during the fiscal year. The recent award of a $100,000 federal grant will enable 

PWP to expand this successful program to homeowners associations and offer direct system installs for 

income-qualified customers in Fiscal Year 2017. Along with ongoing water-wise workshops on topics 

such as edible plantings, drought tolerant landscaping, and rain barrels, Laundry to Landscape 

is designed to introduce customers to alternative landscaping methods that reduce water use. 

LAUNDRY TO 
LANDSCAPE 

A program designed to 
introduce customers to 
alternative landscaping 
methods that reduce 
water use. 

The Conduit, a newsletter published for PWP’s 

commercial customers is now available through 

email. In addition to news and efficiency tips, 

recipients of the newsletter have free online 

access to an “Ask an Expert” hotline of industry 

experts as well as online libraries and proprietary 

information databases of technical, business, and 

engineering resources. 

FY16 Annual Water Savings in Acre Feet 
by Program Type

Multifamily Retrofit Program
226

Residential Fixtures
22

Water & Energy Direct 
Install Program

15

Turf Removal
187

Commercial Fixtures
15
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ENERGY EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS AND REBATES

PWP’s energy efficiency programs helped customers save approximately 

15,143 MWh of energy in Fiscal Year 2016, resulting in cumulative energy 

savings of over 132 GWh. PWP has exceeded its cumulative energy savings 

goals over the past 10 years. Rebates and incentives for energy efficiency 

devices and retrofits continue to be available to residential customers 

through programs such as the Refrigerator Exchange Program, and 

commercial customers through the Energy Efficiency Partnering Program 

(“EEP”) and Pasadena Express Efficiency Rebate Program (“PEER”). In 

addition, PWP enhanced income-qualified service offerings, including free 

energy and gas retrofits, 

and turf removal.

Through the Pasadena 

Solar Initiative, PWP 

incentives encouraged 

customers to install 1.4 

MW of solar systems, 

increasing the total 

amount of solar capacity 

in the city of Pasadena 

to 7.7 MW.

SCHOOL PROGRAMS AND SPONSORSHIPS

PWP offers a range of educational programs to help build awareness about 

the sources of energy and water, encourage conservation and sustainability, 

and to foster community engagement. The programs, which include both 

classroom and field activities, are specifically designed to make information 

memorable for elementary, junior high, and high school students. PWP 

reaches more than 5,000 students directly through its educational programs 

and events, tour offerings, and other requests.

ENERGY AND WATER SAVINGS 

• Provided valued support for more than 5,200 
income-qualified customers through bill payment 
programs and a number of different energy 
efficiency programs

• Approximately 15,143 MWh saved in Fiscal Year 
2016 through energy efficiency programs

• Completed direct installation of water efficient 
devices in 129 small business sites, helping reduce 
water use by 15 acre feet or 5 million gallons of 
water annually

• Expanded Pasadena’s electrical vehicle charging 
infrastructure by installing the City’s first Direct 
Current Fast Charger at the Del Mar Gold Line 
Station

• Completed 136 water- and energy-saving projects 
through the Water and Energy Direct Install 
Program (“WeDIP”). The efficiencies gained 
are estimated to save businesses approximately 
$232,000 annually on their utility bills

• Installed Global Positioning System (“GPS”) 
devices on all assets to improve the collection of 
data for vehicle location, route, engine, and fuel 
consumption

• Continued to offer money-saving incentives to 
residents and businesses, and provide educational 
programs to schools to promote water conservation 
and energy efficiency

PWP IN THE COMMUNITY —  
FISCAL YEAR 2016 

• Events and Workshops 35

• Community Meetings  8

• School Programs and Events  7

CONSERVATION AND OUTREACH

Cumulative Annual Energy Savings (MWh/year)
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TECHNOLOGY

OUTAGE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
(“OMS”) ENHANCEMENTS

PWP continues to explore ways to improve 

customer communication, especially when service 

is affected. In Fiscal Year 2016, the OMS was 

enhanced with a customer notification feature to 

quickly notify affected residents and businesses 

of a planned outage. Customers who elect to 

receive notification services receive a recorded 

phone message with information such as outage 

location, estimated down time, and emergency 

contacts. Plans are underway to expand this 

feature to include text and email. The online OMS 

Power Outage Map has also been improved to 

include up-to-the-minute outage data. 

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM 
(“GIS”) UPGRADE

A new cost-effective Microsoft SQL Server 

database platform and new virtual servers are 

improving PWP’s ability to manage the usage 

demand of the GIS system more efficiently and 

reliably. The core applications for accessing, 

analyzing, and maintaining data, as well as ten 

other integrated GIS applications, have also been 

improved through an upgrade to the newer 

utility-supported ArcGIS/ArcFM v10.2.1.

GLOBAL POSITIONING SYSTEM 
(“GPS”) ASSET TRACKING

Approximately 225 PWP assets have been 

equipped with GPS devices in order to generate 

vehicle data such as location, route, engine, 

and fuel consumption. This technology has also 

been integrated into PWP’s OMS which allows 

dispatchers to quickly identify the proximity of 

vehicles to improve response time.

CYBERSECURITY

With cybersecurity threats on the rise, it is 

imperative that utilities like PWP have a plan 

in place to mitigate potential risk to essential 

utility assets. In collaboration with the City’s 

Department of Information Technology, PWP 

leads a cybersecurity committee that participates 

in monthly conference calls with the Electricity 

Information Sharing and Analysis Center 

(“E-ISAC”), the branch of NERC that monitors 

ongoing threats and keeps utilities informed of 

physical and virtual attacks on a national level. 

PWP is also a member of the City’s Security 

Working Group (“SWG”), which meets bi-

monthly to discuss security threats, vulnerabilities, 

industry best practices, incident reports, and 

action plans. In addition, PWP’s Cybersecurity 

Policy was completed in Fiscal Year 2016 and 

will be implemented in Spring 2017.

OUTAGE 
NOTIFICATIONS

Customers can elect to 
receive a recorded phone 
message with information 
such as outage location, 
estimated down time, and 
emergency contacts.

GIS UPGRADE

• Improves and streamlines the asset 
management process

• Supports long-term asset planning

• Reduces paper records

• Minimizes the time to locate maps 
and information

• Eliminates duplication in storing and 
updating maps
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

To the Honorable City Council 
City of Pasadena 
Pasadena, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Water and Power Enterprise Funds 
of the Pasadena Water and Power Department, (the Department), City of Pasadena, California, as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Department’s basic financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
Department’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Department’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

203 N. Brea Blvd., Suite 203           Brea, CA 92821          Phone: 714.672.0022

An Association of 
Independent Accounting Firms 
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To the Honorable City Council 
City of Pasadena 
Pasadena, California 
 
As discussed in Note 1, the basic financial statements of the Department are intended to present the  
net position, and the changes in net position and cash flows, of only that portion of the Water and Power 
Enterprise funds of the City of Pasadena that is attributable to the transactions of the Water and Power 
Department. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of 
Pasadena, as of June 30, 2016, the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows 
for the year ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective net position of the Water and Power Enterprise Funds of the Pasadena Water and Power 
Department, City of Pasadena, California, as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial 
position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the schedule of 
changes in net pension liability and related ratio, the schedule of contributions, be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of the 
Water and Power Enterprise Funds of the Pasadena Water and Power Department, City of Pasadena, 
California. The introductory section, management’s discussion and analysis, and supplementary 
information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. 
 
The introductory section, management’s discussion and analysis, and supplementary information have 
not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.   
 

 
Brea California 
February 7, 2017 
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CITY OF PASADENA 
POWER ENTERPRISE FUND
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30, 2016 

The Management of Pasadena Water and Power (“PWP”), a 

department of the City of Pasadena (“City”) and also referred to in 

this report as “Utility,” offers the following overview and analysis of 

the basic financial statements of the Power Enterprise Fund (“Power 

Fund”) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. We encourage 

readers to utilize the information presented here in conjunction with 

the accompanying basic financial statements. All amounts, unless 

otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements
Management has elected to provide not only highlights to the basic 

financial statements, but also vital statistics and other relevant data 

and information associated with the Power Fund. Because the Utility 

is a business-like activity of the City of Pasadena, an enterprise 

fund is used to account for its power utility operations. Information 

on City-wide financial results is available in the City of Pasadena 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as of June 30, 2016.

The Power Fund’s basic financial statements are comprised of two 

components: 1) financial statements, and 2) notes to the financial 

statements. Included as part of the financial statements are the 

Statement of Net Position; Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 

Changes in Net Position; and Statement of Cash Flows.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the 

Power Fund’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and 

deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as “net 

position.” Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve 

as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Power 

Fund is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

details the changes in the Power Fund’s net position during the 

past fiscal year. Operating results are recorded under the accrual 

basis of accounting in which all changes in net position are reported as 

underlying events occur, regardless of the timing of cash flows. Thus, 

these statements reflect revenues and expenses for some items that 

will generate cash flows during future fiscal periods; i.e. accounts 

payable and accounts receivable.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents the flow of cash and cash 

equivalents during the last fiscal year, including certain restricted 

amounts.

The Notes to Basic Financial Statements provides additional 

information that is essential to the full understanding of the data 

provided in the basic financial statements.

Financial Highlights
At the end of Fiscal Year 2016 (“FY 2016”), the Power Fund’s 

assets and deferred outflows exceeded its liabilities and deferred 

inflows by about $541.7 million, an increase of approximately 

$20.0 million or 3.8% over the prior fiscal year. Of this amount, 

approximately $102.4 million was available to meet the Utility’s 

near-term obligations. 

The total retail electric energy sold was about 1.1 million megawatt 

hours, a decrease of approximately 3.1% compared to the prior 

fiscal year. Total operating revenue was approximately $199.2 

million, a decrease of about $4.6 million or 2.2% compared to FY 

2015, while total operating expense was about $170.7 million, 

an increase of approximately $4.2 million or 2.5%. Investment 

earnings were about $5.0 million, an increase of approximately 

$1.0 million or 25.8%. Approximately $17.6 million was 

transferred out of the Power Fund to the City of Pasadena.

Financial Analysis
The Condensed Statement of Net Position for the Power Fund is 

as follows:

    Restated 
(in thousands)  FY 2016  FY 2015 Change
Assets
Current assets  $202,805 156,655 46,150
Non-current assets  133,694 159,346  (25,652)
Capital assets  519,642 480,580  39,062
Total assets  856,141  796,581  59,560
Deferred outflows  6,366  6,250  116
Liabilities
Current liabilities  88,011  34,709  53,302
Long-term liabilities  227,200  236,917  (9,717)
Total liabilities  315,211  271,626  43,585
Deferred inflows  5,625  9,578  (3,953)
Net position
Invested in capital assets, 
 net of related debt  298,498  280,432  18,066     
Restricted:
 Contribution to General Fund  17,371  17,185  186
 Debt Service  14,766  34,286 (19,520)
 Stranded investment 106,453 110,564 (4,111) 
 Other purposes 2,203 1,932 271
Unrestricted  102,380  77,228  25,152
Total net position  $541,671  521,627  20,044

As of June 30, 2016, the Power Fund’s total assets increased by 

approximately $59.6 million or 7.5%, primarily due to approximate 

increases of $47.1 million in unrestricted cash and investments, 

$2.4 million in inventories, $1.4 million in stranded investments, 

and $39.1 million in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation. 

Major capital projects include the GT-5 Repowering Project; 

undergrounding of street lighting and the electric system; 
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replacement of distribution transformers, switches and conductors; 

and other improvements to the Electric System. These increases 

were partially offset by decreases of about $3.6 million in due 

from other funds for reimbursement costs associated with FY 2015 

electrical undergrounding projects; approximately $19.2 million 

in other restricted cash and investments for FY 2015 drawdowns 

from 2013 Electric Revenue Bond proceeds; nearly $5.5 million in 

notes receivable from Intermountain Power Authority (“IPA”); about 

$2.0 million in prepaid assets; and nearly $0.1 million in advances 

to other funds due to a loan repayment associated with an energy 

efficient lighting project for the City’s Public Works Department. 

Deferred outflow of resources increased by about $0.1 million due 

to an increase of about $0.5 million in deferred outflows related 

to net pension liability offset by a decrease of about $0.4 million in 

deferred charges related to the bond refunding.

As of June 30, 2016, the Stranded Investment Reserve (“SIR”) 

balance was about $106.5 million. Of this amount, approximately 

$69.5 million was restricted cash and investment available to cover 

stranded costs resulting from the uncertainty associated with long-

term commitments for energy from Intermountain Power Project 

(“IPP”). The remaining $37.0 million represents the balance of the 

IPA subordinate notes. In FY 2016, PWP received approximately $1.4 

million in interest income from IPA relating to the subordinate notes.

Total liabilities as of June 30, 2016 increased by approximately $43.6 

million or 16.0% compared to the prior fiscal year. This was due to 

approximate increases of $44.7 million in short-term loan associated 

with the line of credit for Electric System capital improvements; $4.3 

million in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, $0.8 million in 

deposits, $1.5 million in unearned revenue, and $2.3 million in net 

pension liability associated with Governmental Accounting Standards 

Board Statement No. 68 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for 

Pensions (“GASB 68”). These increases were offset by a decrease of 

about $10.0 million in revenue bonds. Deferred inflow of resources 

related to net pension liability decreased by about $4.0 million or 

41.3% compared to the prior fiscal year.

The beginning net position was restated from approximately 

$519.9 million to about $521.6 million, an increase of about 

$1.7 million due to capital asset reconciliation associated with the 

implementation of the Tyler Munis Enterprise Resource Planning 

system. Total net position at the end of the year was about $541.7 

million, an increase of approximately $20.1 million or 3.8% 

compared to the prior fiscal year.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

for the Power Fund is as follows:

    Restated 
(in thousands)  FY 2016  FY 2015 Change

Operating revenues:
 Retail  $181,348  182,945  (1,597) 
 Wholesale  2,256  3,764  (1,508)
 Miscellaneous/other revenues  15,593  17,039  (1,446)
Total operating revenues  199,197  203,748  (4,551)
Operating expenses:
 Purchased power and fuel – retail  91,779  95,337  (3,558)
 Purchased power and fuel – wholesale  1,926 2,975  (1,049)
 Other operating expenses  24,439  22,327  2,112 
 Administrative and general  28,207  27,171 1,036
 Depreciation  24,303  18,656 5,647
Total operating expenses  170,654  166,466  4,188
Operating income  28,543  37,282  (8,739)
 Non-operating income (expenses):
 Investment earnings (incl. net change
  in fair market of investments)  5,027 3,996  1,031
 Other non-operating revenues (expenses)  1,545  6,147  (4,602)
 Interest expense  (4,204)  (4,556)  352
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)  2,368  5,587 (3,219)
Income before contributions and transfers  30,911  42,869  (11,958)
Contributions and transfers:
 Capital contributions  1,814 2,354 (540)
 Transfers in from City of Pasadena  4,908  3,588 1,320
 Transfers out to City of Pasadena  (17,589)  (16,122)  (1,467)
Change in net position  20,044  32,689  (12,645)
Net position, beginning of year,
as restated  521,627  488,938  32,689
Net position, end of year  $541,671  521,627  20,044

The Power Fund’s operating revenue was about $199.2 million, a 

decrease of approximately $4.6 million or 2.2% compared to the 

prior fiscal year. Retail revenue decreased by about $1.6 million or 

0.9% due to a decrease in retail energy sold. Total retail revenue 

was approximately $181.3 million, of which about $119.7 million 

was related to commercial and industrial, nearly $59.6 million to 

residential, and approximately $2.0 million to street lights and traffic 

signals including unbilled retail revenues. Wholesale energy revenue was 

about $2.3 million, a decrease of approximately $1.5 million or 40.1% 

from the prior fiscal year due to a reduction in wholesale activities with 

the California Independent System Operator (“CAISO”). Miscellaneous 

and other revenues decreased by about $1.4 million, largely due to a 

decrease in sales of allocated cap and trade emissions allowances. 

Participating Transmission Owners (“PTO”) revenues and other related 

transmission revenues received from the California Independent System 

Operator (“CAISO”) to cover PWP’s Transmission Revenue Requirement 

(“TRR”) amounted to approximately $13.5 million, a decrease of 

about $0.08 million or 0.6% compared to the prior fiscal year.

Pasadena Water & Power  |  2016 Annual Report   17    16 Pasadena Water & Power  |  2016 Annual Report



CITY OF PASADENA 
POWER ENTERPRISE FUND
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30, 2016 

Investment earnings, including the net change in fair value of 

investments, was about $5.0 million, an increase of about $1.0 

million or 25.8% compared to the prior fiscal year, mainly due to 

higher interest rates and increases in fair value of pooled investments 

and Stranded Investment Reserve. Other non-operating revenues, 

net of non-operating expenses, decreased by nearly $4.6 million 

or 71.3% due to a gas turbine-related insurance claim settlement 

received in FY 2015.

Total capital contributions received from developers was approximately 

$1.8 million, a decrease of about $0.5 million or 22.9%. PWP received 

$4.9 million from the Underground Utility Fund to fund underground 

electrical conduit projects. 

Sources 
of 

Funds

Commercial & Industrial 
56%

Municipal & Others 
1%

Wholesale Sales 
1%

Non-Operating 
& Misc. Others 
7%

ISO-PTO 
7%

Residential 
28%

Total operating expenses amounted to about $170.7 million, an 

increase of approximately $4.2 million or 2.5% over the prior fiscal 

year, primarily due to an increase in depreciation. Total purchased 

power expense was about $87.3 million, which represented 41% 

of the $212.5 million in total uses of Power funds. Administrative 

and general expense amounted to about $28.2 million, an increase 

approximately $1.0 million or 3.8% over the prior fiscal year mainly 

due to an increase in utility and direct installation rebates.

Depreciation expense was about $24.3 million, an increase of about 

$5.6 million or 30.3% compared to the prior fiscal year, primarily 

due to $4.3 million in capital asset reconciliation related to the 

implementation of the Tyler Munis Enterprise Resource Planning 

system, and $1.3 million in completion of capital projects in FY 

2016. Total interest expense was about $4.2 million, a decrease of 

approximately $0.4 million or 7.7%.

Transfers out of the Power Fund to the City were approximately 

$17.6 million, an increase of about $1.5 million or about 9.1% 

compared to the prior fiscal year. In compliance with the City 

Charter, PWP transferred approximately $17.2 million to the City 

General Fund during FY 2016, an increase of about $1.2 million 

or 7.6% compared to the prior fiscal year. The transfer rate for 

FY 2016 was based on 10% of FY 2015 gross operating revenue 

from retail sales. Transfers to the Benefit and Insurance Fund were 

approximately $0.4 million in FY 2016.

Uses of 
Funds

Purchased Power 
41%

Net Income 
9%

Direct Operating 
12%

Fuel Expense 
3%

Depreciation 
12%

Administrative 
& General 
13%

Interest 
2%

General Fund Transfer 
8%

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
As of June 30, 2016, the Power Fund’s net utility plant and 

equipment, which includes investments in production, transmission, 

distribution facilities, and general items such as equipment and 

furniture, was about $519.6 million, an increase of approximately 

$39.1 million or 8.1% over the prior fiscal year. 

 Restated 
Capital Assets (in thousands)   FY 2016  FY 2015
Land   $    3,020  3,022
Buildings and improvements   46,289  44,238
Utility lines, machinery, and equipment   617,082  603,752
Construction work in progress   222,845  181,013
Accumulated depreciation   (369,594)  (351,445)
Net capital assets   $519,642  480,580

Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt, net of unamortized premium of $8.3 million, 

was about $184.4 million at the end of FY 2016. This represents 

a decrease of approximately $9.3 million or 4.8% compared to 

the prior fiscal year. The current long-term debt due within a year 

was about $11.3 million and non-current long-term debt was 

approximately $173.2 million. The debt is backed by the revenue 

of the Utility. PWP’s Power Enterprise Fund maintained an “AA-” 

rating from Standard and Poor’s and “AA” from Fitch.

Outstanding Long-Term Debt (in thousands)  FY 2016  FY 2015
2008 Electric Revenue Bonds   $  48,615  50,035
2009 Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds   25,545  28,750
2010 Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds   23,290  27,520
2012 Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds   6,510  6,995
2013 Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds   80,485  80,485
Total long-term debt  184,445  193,785
Current long-term debt   11,290  9,340
Non-current long-term debt  $173,155  184,445

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the 

Power Fund’s finances. Questions concerning information provided 

in this report should be addressed to the Assistant General Manager, 

Finance, Administration and Customer Service Business Unit, 

Pasadena Water and Power, 150 S. Los Robles Avenue, Suite 200, 

Pasadena, California 91101. 
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CITY OF PASADENA 
WATER ENTERPRISE FUND
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30, 2016

The Management of Pasadena Water and Power (“PWP”), a 

department of the City of Pasadena (“City”) and also referred to in 

this report as “Utility,” offers the following overview and analysis of 

the basic financial statements of the Water Enterprise Fund (“Water 

Fund”) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. We encourage 

readers to utilize the information presented here in conjunction 

with the accompanying basic financial statements. Unless otherwise 

indicated, all amounts are expressed in thousands of dollars.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements
Management has elected to provide not only highlights to the basic 

financial statements, but also vital statistics and other relevant data 

and information associated with the Water Fund. Because the Utility 

is a business-like activity of the City of Pasadena, an enterprise 

fund is used to account for its water utility operations. Information 

on City-wide financial results is available in the City of Pasadena 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as of June 30, 2016.

The Water Fund’s basic financial statements are comprised of two 

components: 1) financial statements, and 2) notes to the financial 

statements. Included as part of the financial statements are the 

Statement of Net Position; Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 

Changes in Net Position; and Statement of Cash Flows.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of 

the Water Fund’s assets and deferred outflows of resources and 

liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference 

reported as “net position.” Over time, increases or decreases in net 

position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 

position of the Water Fund is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

details the changes in the Water Fund’s net position during the 

past fiscal year. Operating results are recorded under the accrual 

basis of accounting in which all changes in net position are 

reported as underlying events occur, regardless of the timing of 

cash flows. Thus, these statements reflect revenues and expenses 

for some items that will generate cash flows during future fiscal 

periods; i.e. accounts payable and accounts receivable.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents the flow of cash and cash 

equivalents during the last fiscal year, including certain restricted 

amounts.

The Notes to Basic Financial Statements provides additional 

information that is essential to the full understanding of the data 

provided in the basic financial statements.

Financial Highlights
At the end of Fiscal Year 2016 (“FY 2016”), the Water Fund’s assets 

and deferred outflows exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows 

by about $154.7 million, an increase of about $11.0 million or 

7.7% over the prior fiscal year. Of this amount, approximately $24.5 

million was available to meet the Utility’s near-term obligations. 

The total retail water sold was about 10.3 million billing units, a 

decrease of about 2.1 million billing units or 16.9% compared to the 

prior fiscal year. A billing unit is equivalent to 748 gallons of water. 

Total operating revenue was approximately $50.8 million, a decrease 

of about $6.6 million or 11.5% compared to the prior fiscal year. 

Total operating expense was approximately $41.5 million, a decrease 

of about $2.8 million or 6.4% compared to the prior fiscal year. 

Approximately $2.0 million was transferred out of the Water Fund to 

the City of Pasadena.

Financial Analysis
The Condensed Statement of Net Position for the Water Fund is 

as follows:

    Restated 
(in thousands)  FY 2016  FY 2015 Change

Assets
Current assets  $  55,449  57,389  (1,940)
Non-current assets  6,427  6,289  138
Capital assets  187,240 178,774  8,466

Total assets  249,116  242,452  6,664
Deferred outflows  2,017  1,869  148
Liabilities
Current liabilities  11,074  10,866  208
Long-term liabilities  83,599  86,576  (2,977)
Total liabilities  94,673  97,442  (2,769)
Deferred inflows  1,740  3,201  (1,461)
Net position
Invested in capital assets, 
 net of related debt  122,272  103,954  18,318
Restricted:
 Contribution to General Fund  1,544  1,544  –
 Debt Service  6,427  6,289  138
Unrestricted  24,477  31,891  (7,414)
Total net position  $154,720  143,678  11,042

As of June 30, 2016, the Water Fund’s total assets increased by 

approximately $6.7 million or 2.7% primarily due to approximate 

increases of $1.2 million in unrestricted cash and investments, $0.1 

million in other restricted cash and investments, and $8.5 million 

in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation. Major capital 

projects in FY 2016 included the installation of new distribution, 

fire protection mains, Automatic Meter Read (“AMR”) meters, and 

other Water System improvements. These increases were offset by 

decreases of about $2.6 million in accounts receivable and nearly 

$0.5 million in inventories. Deferred outflow of resources increased 

by $0.1 million mainly due to an increase in deferred outflows 

related to net pension liability. 
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Total liabilities decreased by approximately $2.8 million or 2.8% 

compared to the prior fiscal year. This was mainly due to decreases 

of about $0.6 million in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and 

nearly $3.5 million in revenue bonds. The decreases were offset with 

increases of about $0.4 million in unearned revenues, and nearly 

$0.9 million in net pension liability associated with Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 – Accounting and 

Financial Reporting for Pensions (“GASB 68”). Deferred inflow of 

resources related to net pension liability decreased by about $1.5 

million or 45.6% compared to the prior fiscal year. 

The beginning net position was restated from approximately 

$143.6 million to about $143.7 million, a slight increase of about 

$0.1 million due to capital asset reconciliation associated with the 

implementation of the Tyler Munis Enterprise Resource Planning 

system. Total net position at the end of the year was approximately 

$154.7 million, an increase of approximately $11.0 million or 7.7% 

compared to the prior fiscal year. 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

for the Water Fund is as follows:

    Restated 
(in thousands)  FY 2016  FY 2015 Change

Operating revenues:
 Sales within City limits  $  33,966  38,029  (4,063)
 Sales outside City limits  6,339  7,327  (988)
 Municipal sales and fire protection  2,617  2,923  (306)
 Capital improvement charge  7,584  7,886  (302)
 Miscellaneous/other revenues  329  1,275 (946)
Total operating revenues  50,835  57,440  (6,605)
Operating expenses:
 Purchased water 17,216  19,198  (1,982)
 Purchased power  2,278 2,377  (99)
 Other operating expenses  8,155  9,421  (1,266)
 Administrative and general  7,851  7,815  36
 Depreciation  5,971  5,486 485
Total operating expenses  41,471  44,297  (2,826)
Operating income  9,364  13,143  (3,779)
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
 Investment earnings (incl. net change
  in fair market of investments)  703  599  104 
 Other non-operating revenues (expenses) 5,784  8,522  (2,738)
 Interest expense  (3,770)  (3,904)  134
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)  2,717  5,217  (2,500)
Income before contributions and transfers  12,081  18,360  (6,279)
Contributions and transfers:
 Capital contributions  976  551 425
 Transfers out to City of Pasadena  (2,015)  (1,922)  (93)
Change in net position  11,042  16,989  (5,947)
Net position, beginning of year,
 as restated  143,678  126,689  16,989
Net position, end of year  $154,720  143,678  11,042

Operating revenues for FY 2016 decreased by approximately $6.6 

million or 11.5% compared to the prior fiscal year, mainly due to 

a 16.9% decrease in retail water sales. Sales revenue generated 

inside city limits decreased by approximately $4.1 million or 10.7%, 

while sales revenue generated outside city limits decreased by 

about $1.0 million or 13.5%. Sales revenues from municipal, fire 

protection, miscellaneous and other operating activities decreased 

by approximately $1.2 million or 29.8%. In addition, Capital 

Improvement Charge (“CIC”) revenue decreased by nearly $0.3 

million or 3.8% compared to FY 2015 due to the decrease in retail 

water sales. The CIC is a volumetric charge.

Investment earnings, including net change in fair market value of 

investments, increased slightly by about $0.1 million or 17.4% 

compared to the prior fiscal year. Capital contributions received 

from developers increased by approximately $0.4 million or 76.9%. 

Other non-operating revenues, net of non-operating expenses, 

decreased by nearly $3.0 million or 34% primarily due to the 

Water and General Fund Transfer Settlement in FY 2015.

Total sources of funds for the FY 2016 Water Fund was about 

$58.3 million, of which approximately $34.0 million or 58% 

represents retail revenues generated inside city limits, $6.3 million 

or 11% represents revenues generated outside city limits, $7.6 

million or 13% represents CIC, and nearly $10.4 million or 18% 

represents other operating and non-operating revenues.

Sources 
of 

Funds
Inside City 

58%

Non-Operating & 
Misc. Others 

13%
Capital 
Improvement 
Charge 
13%

Municipal & Others 
5%

Outside City 
11%

 

Total operating expenses decreased by about $2.8 million or 

6.4% compared to FY 2015. This change was primarily due to 

decreases of about $2.0 million or 10.3% in purchased water costs 

resulting from reduced retail water sales offset by rate increases 

implemented by Metropolitan Water District (“MWD”). In FY 

2016, PWP purchased 15,008 acre-feet from MWD, a 14.0% 

decrease compared to the prior fiscal year. Total purchased water 

expense was about $17.2 million, which represents 29.5% of 

the approximately $58.3 million in total uses of funds. FY 2016 

direct expenses related to transmission and distribution, sources 

of supply, pumping, and water treatment also decreased by about 

$1.3 million or 13.4% to $8.2 million, which represents 14% 

of the total uses of funds in FY 2016. Purchased power costs 

associated with pumping water also decreased slightly by about 

$0.1 million or 4.1% compared to FY 2015.
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Depreciation expense was about $6.0 million, an increase of 

nearly $0.5 million or 8.8% compared to the prior fiscal year. Total 

interest expense was approximately $3.8 million, a slight decrease 

of approximately $0.1 million or 3.4%.

Transfers out of the Water Fund to the City were approximately 

$2.0 million, a slight increase of about $0.1 million or 4.8% 

compared to FY 2015. These transfers consist of approximately 

$1.5 million resulting from a cost-of-service study provided to the 

Water Division, $0.4 million for services related to the Hahamongna 

Watershed Park, and $0.1 million in transfers to the Benefit and 

Insurance Fund.

Uses of 
Funds

Purchased Water 
30%

Interest 
6%

Direct Operating 
14%

Purchased Power 
4%

Net Income 
19%

Administrative 
& General 
14%

General Fund Transfer 
3%

Depreciation 
10%

 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
As of June 30, 2016, the Water Fund’s net utility plant and 

equipment, which includes investments in production, transmission, 

facilities-related distribution, and general items such as equipment 

and furniture, was approximately $187.2 million, an increase of 

4.7% over the prior fiscal year. The increase is primarily attributable 

to an increase in capital improvements related to water mains, 

chloramine disinfection facilities, machinery, and equipment.

     Restated 
Capital Assets (in thousands)   FY 2016  FY 2015
Land   $    1,578  1,577
Buildings and improvements   6,240  6,199
Water mains, machinery, and equipment   216,605  211,742
Construction work in progress   51,827 42,674
Accumulated depreciation   (89,010)  (83,418)
Net capital assets   $187,240  178,774

Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt, net of unamortized premium of $2.8 million, 

was about $69.1 million at the end of FY 2016. This represents 

a decrease of approximately $3.3 million or 4.6% compared to 

the prior fiscal year. The current long-term debt due within a 

year was about $3.6 million and non-current long-term debt was 

approximately $65.5 million. The debt was backed by the revenue 

of the Utility. PWP’s Water Enterprise Fund maintained an “AA” 

rating from Standard and Poor’s and “AA+” from Fitch.

Outstanding Long-Term Debt (in thousands)  FY 2016  FY 2015
2007 Water Revenue Bonds   $ 17,370  17,915
2010 Water Revenue Bonds   28,190  28,810
2011 Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds   23,560  25,700
Total long-term debt  69,120  72,425
Current long-term debt 3,630  3,305 
Non-current long-term debt $ 65,490  69,120 

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview 

of the Water Fund’s finances. Questions concerning information 

provided in this report should be addressed to the Assistant 

General Manager, Finance, Administration and Customer Service 

Business Unit, Pasadena Water and Power, 150 S. Los Robles 

Avenue, Suite 200, Pasadena, California 91101.  
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CITY OF PASADENA 
Water and Power Enterprise Funds 

Statement of Net Position  
June 30, 2016

Assets  Light & Power Water
Current assets:

Cash and investments (note 2)  $ 158,175,499 40,073,271
Accounts receivable, net (note 3)  22,171,720  6,608,083

Notes receivable – current (note 4)  5,826,250  —

Inventories  13,265,894  8,444,856

Prepaids and other assets  3,365,732  322,210

Total current assets  202,805,095  55,448,420

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted assets – cash and investments:

To finance stranded investments (note 9)  69,503,836  —

Other restricted cash and investments  15,065,953  6,427,126

Notes receivable (note 4)  31,122,500  —

Prepaid long-term assets  17,031,509  —

Advances to other funds (note 6)  770,000  —

Accounts receivable from Independent System Operator (ISO)  200,000  —

Capital assets (note 5)  889,236,771  276,250,084

Less accumulated depreciation  (369,594,196)  (89,010,288)

Net property, plant and equipment  519,642,575  187,239,796

Total noncurrent assets  653,336,373  193,666,922

Total assets  856,141,468  249,115,342

Deferred outflow of resources
Deferred charges – bond refunding  2,224,223  463,127

Deferred outflows related to net pension liability  4,141,384  1,554,261

Total deferred outflow of resources  6,365,607 2,017,388

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  26,587,983  5,834,239

Deposits  1,899,086  243,795

Unearned revenues  2,533,631  1,365,469

Line of credit  45,700,000  —

Revenue bonds – current (notes 7 and 8)  11,290,000  3,630,000

Total current liabilities  88,010,700  11,073,503

Long-term liabilities:

GASB 68 Net pension liability  45,755,405  15,371,629

Revenue bonds – long-term (notes 7 and 8)  181,444,878  68,227,566

Total long-term liabilities  227,200,283  83,599,195

Total liabilities  315,210,983  94,672,698

Deferred inflow of resources
Deferred inflows related to net pension liability (note 10) 5,625,359  1,739,682

Total deferred inflow of resources  5,625,359  1,739,682

Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt  298,497,873  122,272,483

Restricted:

Contribution to General Fund  17,371,327 1,544,138

Debt service  14,765,594  6,427,126

Stranded investment (note 9) 106,452,586  —

Other purposes  2,203,392  —

Unrestricted  102,379,961  24,476,603

Total net position  $ 541,670,733  154,720,350

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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CITY OF PASADENA 
Water and Power Enterprise Funds 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

 Light & Power Water
Operating revenues:
Charges for services:

Light and power operating revenue  $   61,955,064  —

Recovered transmission and energy cost  111,830,826  —

Public benefit charge  7,561,925  —

Sales to other utilities  2,256,353  —

CAISO-PTO*  13,527,577  —

Water sales within City limits  —  33,965,961

Water sales outside City limits  —  6,339,409

Municipal sales and fire protection  —  2,616,762

Capital improvement charge  —  7,584,340

Miscellaneous others  2,065,710  328,461

Total operating revenues  199,197,455  50,834,933

Operating expenses:
Fuel – retail  5,617,476  —

Fuel – wholesale  740,756  —

Purchased power – retail  86,161,112  2,277,715

Purchased power – wholesale  1,185,448  —

Purchased water  —  17,215,549

Other production costs  9,869,419  —

Hydro-electric power generation  319,390  —

Sources of supply  —  1,167,355

Pumping  —  479,884

Water treatment  —  2,034,440

Transmission and distribution  14,250,126  4,473,713

Administrative and general expenses  15,745,018  6,708,575

Customer and commercial expenses  12,461,955  1,142,319

Depreciation  24,303,385  5,971,084

Total operating expenses  170,654,085  41,470,634

Operating income (loss)  28,543,370  9,364,299

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Investment earnings  5,026,956  702,934

Interest expense  (4,204,032)  (3,769,513)

Gain (loss) on disposal of assets  (292,797)  (15,666)

Other non-operating revenues (expenses)  1,838,084  5,799,120

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)  2,368,211  2,716,875

Income (loss) before transfers and contributions  30,911,581  12,081,174

Capital contributions  1,813,649  975,613

Transfers in from City of Pasadena (note 11)  4,908,006  —

Transfers out to City of Pasadena (note 11)  (17,589,165)  (2,014,557)

Net income (loss)  20,044,071  11,042,230

Net position at beginning of year, as restated (note 16)  521,626,662  143,678,120

Net position at end of year  $ 541,670,733  154,720,350

* California Independent System Operator – Participating Transmission Owner 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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CITY OF PASADENA 
Water and Power Enterprise Funds 

Statement of Cash Flows  
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

 Light & Power Water
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers  $ 201,256,445  53,871,050

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services  (109,510,289)  (23,734,156)

Cash payments to employees for services  (27,326,709)  (9,340,768)

Cash payments to other funds for services  (6,338,695)  (3,040,727)

Cash payments from other funds for services  192,632  92,307

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities  58,273,384  17,847,706

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Transfers from other funds  4,908,006  —

Transfers to other funds  (17,589,165)  (2,014,557)

Cash received (paid) on loans to other funds  3,671,750  —

Miscellaneous revenues (expenses)  1,352,655  5,051,264

Intergovernmental revenues  —  639,883

Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital financing activities  (7,656,754)  3,676,590

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt  44,700,000  —

Acquisition and construction of capital assets  (63,812,600)  (14,672,326)

Capital contributions  1,813,649  975,613

Principal paid on debt  (9,340,000)  (3,305,000)

Interest paid on debt  (4,585,952)  (3,902,622)

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities  (31,224,903)  (20,904,335)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments  (69,888,479)  —

Proceeds from sale of investments  57,454,382  2,088

Investment earnings  4,411,830  702,934

Payments received from loans made to suppliers  5,541,668  —

Net cash provided by investing activities  (2,480,599)  705,022

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  16,911,128  1,324,983

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  147,070,967  39,019,794

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $ 163,982,095  40,344,777

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to amounts 
reported on the Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments  $ 158,175,499  40,073,271

Stranded investments  69,503,836  —

Other restricted cash and investments  15,065,593  6,427,126

Less non-cash equivalents  (78,762,833)  (6,155,620)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $ 163,982,095  40,344,777
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CITY OF PASADENA 
Water and Power Enterprise Funds 
Statement of Cash Flows (continued) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

 Light & Power Water
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided by (used for) operating activities:
Operating income (loss)  $  28,543,370  9,364,299

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation  24,303,385  5,971,084

Miscellaneous revenue 192,632  92,307

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable  534,961  2,643,491

Increase (decrease) in allowance for uncollectible accounts  39,965  (15,918)

(Increase) decrease in inventories  (2,388,092)  496,893

(Increase) decrease in prepaids and other assets  136,298  985

(Increase) decrease in prepaid long term assets  1,925,436  —

(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows  (916,765)  (385,432)

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities  4,450,529  (562,270)

Increase (decrease) in deferred charges  1,484,064  408,544

Increase (decrease) in deposits payable  800,710  48,168

Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows  (3,105,454)  (1,054,475)

Increase (decrease) in net pension obligations  2,272,345  840,030

Total adjustments  29,730,014  8,483,407

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities  $  58,273,384  17,847,706

Non-cash charges:
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of capital assets $      (292,797)  (15,666)

Amortization of deferred charges 184,531  (66,161)

Amortization of Premiums/(Discounts) 699,497  186,988

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The following is a summary of significant accounting policies of the City of Pasadena (“City”) as they pertain to the City’s 

Water and Power Enterprise Funds. The basic financial statements presented represent the respective balances of the funds 

and the results of operations for the funds and are not meant to represent the entirety of the accruals that are borne by 

the City that relate to the Pasadena Water and Power Department.

(a) Basis of Accounting
The City’s Water and Power Enterprise Funds are used to account for the construction, operation, and maintenance of the 
City-owned water and power utilities. Enterprise Funds are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized when they are earned and expenses are recognized when the related goods or services are delivered. Enterprise 
Funds are presented using the economic resources measurement focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities (whether 
current or noncurrent) associated with their activity are included on their balance sheets. Enterprise Fund operating 
statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position.

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services, and producing and delivering goods in connection 
with an Enterprise Fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Water and Power Funds are 
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the Enterprise Funds include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the financial statements. Proceeds of long-term debt 
are recorded as a liability in the financial statements. Amounts paid to reduce long-term indebtedness are reported as a 
reduction of the related liability.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are combined in a fund, expenses are considered to be paid first from 
restricted resources, and then from unrestricted resources.

Financial reporting is based upon all Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) pronouncements, as well 
as the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Boards 
(“APB”) Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins that were issued on or before November 30, 1989 that do not 
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. FASB Pronouncements issued after November 1989 are not followed 
in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements.

(b) Major Funds
The accompanying financial statements report the following major funds:

Light and Power Fund – Used to account for the operations of the City’s electric utility; a self-supporting activity that 
renders services on a user-charge basis to residents and businesses as prescribed by the City Charter. 

Water Fund – Used to account for the operations of the City’s water utility; a self-supporting activity that renders 
services on a user-charge basis to residents and businesses as prescribed by the City Charter.

(c) Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid investments that are 
both readily convertible to known amounts of cash or so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes 
in value because of changes in interest rates. Cash equivalents also represent the Enterprise Fund’s share in the City’s cash 
and investment pool. Cash equivalents have an original maturity date of three months or less from the date of purchase.

(d) Cash and Investments
Investments are reported in the accompanying financial statements at fair value based on quoted market prices, 
except for certain certificates of deposit, money market investments that mature within one year of acquisition and 
investment contracts that are reported at cost because they are not transferable, have terms that are not affected by 
changes in market interest rates, and provided that the fair value of those investments is not significantly affected by the 
impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by other factors.

Both realized and unrealized changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized and recorded as net 
changes in fair value of investments. Investment earnings include interest earnings and all other investment income.

(e) Inventories
Inventories held for consumption by the Light and Power and Water Funds are carried at the lower of weighted average 
cost or market computed on a first-in/first-out basis. Inventory items are accounted for as an expenditure or expense 
when consumed.

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016
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(f) Advances to Other Funds
Long-term interfund advances are recorded as a receivable and as reserved fund balance by the advancing governmental fund.

(g) Prepaids
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid assets.

(h) Restricted Cash and Investments
The City considers all cash and investments from bond proceeds in Enterprise Funds as restricted. The City is legally mandated 
under bond indentures to use these resources only for the purposes specified. Also included as restricted cash and investments 
are amounts accumulated in the Light and Power Fund for the purpose of meeting future contractual commitments including 
the Stranded Investment Reserve (“SIR”) Utilization Plan which is discussed under Note 9 – Stranded Investments.

(i) Capital Assets
Capital assets greater than $10,000 are capitalized and recorded at cost or at the estimated fair value of the assets 
at the time of acquisition where complete historical records have not been maintained. Contributed capital assets 
are valued at their estimated fair market value at the date of the contribution. The costs of normal maintenance 
and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 

Depreciation has been provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the asset. 
A summary of the estimated useful lives of capital assets is shown at right:

(j) Net Pension Liability
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to 
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions 
from the fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the 
CalPERS Financial Office, and are in accordance with the implementation of GASB Statement No, 68. 
Investments are reported at fair value. CalPERS-audited financial statements are publicly available reports 
that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications. 

(k)  Bond Premiums/Discounts/Issuance Costs
Issuance costs are recognized during the current period. Any bond premiums and discounts are capitalized and amortized 
over the life of the bonds. Bond proceeds are reported as other financing sources net of any applicable discount or premium.

(l) Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
Pursuant to GASB Statements No. 63 and 65, the City recognizes deferred outflows and inflows of resources. A deferred 
outflow of resources is defined as a consumption of net position by the government that is applicable to a future 
reporting period. A deferred inflow of resources is defined as an acquisition of net position by the government that is 
applicable to a future reporting period. 

(m) Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and 
expenditures. The City has made certain estimates and assumptions relating to the revenues due and expenditures incurred 
through fiscal year end, collectability of its receivables, the valuation of property held for resale, the useful lives of the capital 
assets, and the ultimate outcome of claims and judgments. Actual results may differ from those estimates and assumptions.

(n) Future Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements
GASB Statements listed below will be implemented in future financial statements (note all effective dates reflect that the 
provisions of these statements are effective for financial statements periods beginning after the date stated):

Statement 
No. Title

Effective for Fiscal Year 
Beginning On or After

74 Fair Value Measurement and Application June 15, 2016
75 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions June 15, 2017
77 Tax Abatement Disclosures December 15, 2015
78 Pensions Provided through Certain Mutliple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans December 15, 2015
80 Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units – an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 June 15, 2016
81 Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements December 15, 2016
82 Pension Issues – an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73 June 15, 2016

Light and Power Fund
Production Plant........20 to 40 years
Transmission Plant .....25 to 40 years
Distribution Plant ......20 to 40 years
General Plant ............10 to 40 years
Equipment ..................4 to 10 years

Water Fund
Source of Supply .......20 to 50 years
Pumping Plant ..........10 to 50 years
Treatment Plant .........10 to 20 years
Transmission and 
Distribution Plant .......10 to 80 years
General Plant ..............6 to 50 years
Equipment ..................4 to 10 years
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Management is in the process of evaluating the impact of the statements to be implemented for the fiscal year ended 

June 30, 2017 and beyond. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, management does not anticipate any significant 

impact from the new statements on the financial statements.

(2) Cash and Investments
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2016 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

 Light & Power Fund Water Fund          
Statement of net position:

Cash and investments  $158,175,499  40,073,271

Restricted cash and investments:

To finance stranded investments  69,503,836  –

Other restricted cash and investments  15,065,953  6,427,126

Total cash and investments  $242,745,288  46,500,397

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2016 consist of the following:

Cash on hand  $           7,500         500

Investment in City of Pasadena Pool  158,167,999  40,072,771

Investments  84,569,789  6,427,126

Total cash and investments  $242,745,288  46,500,397

 Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California Government Code and 

the City’s investment policy. The table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the City’s 

investment policy, if more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does 

not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the 

City, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy. 

Investment Types 
Authorized by State Law

Authorized 
By Investment 

Policy
Maximum 
Maturity1

Maximum 
Percentage of 

Portfolio1

Maximum 
Investment in 

One Issuer1

Local Agency Bonds2 Yes 5 years None None

US Treasury Obligations2 Yes 5 years None None

US Agency Securities2 Yes 5 years None None

Banker’s Acceptance Yes 180 days 40% 30%

Commercial Paper Yes 270 days 15% 10%

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit Yes 5 years 25% None

Repurchase Agreement Yes 1 year None None

Reverse Repurchase Agreements Yes 92 days 20% of base value None

Medium Term Notes Yes 5 years 30% 5%

Mutual Funds Yes N/A 20% 10%

Money Market Mutual Funds Yes N/A 20% 10%

Mortgage Pass-Through Securities Yes 5 years 20% None

County Pooled Investment Fund Yes N/A None None

Local Agency Investment Fund Yes N/A None None

JPA Pools (other investment pools) Yes N/A None None

1 Based on state law requirements or investment policy requirements, whichever is more restrictive
2  With the exception of the Power Reserve and Bond Reserve Funds with consent of the bond insurers, these type of investments can be held for 
more than five years.
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 Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements
Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee are 

governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather than 

by the general provisions of the California Government Code 

or the City’s investment policy. The table at right identifies the 

investment types that are authorized for investments held by 

bond trustee. The table also identifies certain provisions of these 

debt agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and 

concentration of credit risk. 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk related to changes in market interest 

rates that will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 

Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the fair value 

of the investment is more susceptible to changes in market interest 

rates. One of the ways that the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter and 

longer term investments, and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming 

close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments (including investments held by bond trustee) 

to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the City’s investments 

by maturity:

Light and Power Fund

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

Investment Type Total
12 Months 

or Less
13 to 24 
Months

25 to 60 
Months

More Than 
60 Months

Corporate Bonds $    5,027,415 2,516,655 2,510,760 — —

Federal Agency Securities 68,702,072 — — 46,364,348 22,337,724

Municipal Bond 5,033,704 2,011,820 — 3,021,884 —

Investment in City Pool 158,167,999 158,167,999 — — —

Money Market Fund 5,632,671 5,632,671 — — —

State Investment Pool 173,927 173,927 — — —

Total $242,737,788 168,503,072 2,510,760 49,386,232 22,337,724
 

Water Fund

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

Investment Type Total
12 Months 

or Less
13 to 24 
Months

25 to 60 
Months

More Than 
60 Months

Investment in City Pool $  40,072,771 40,072,771

State Investment Pool 2,172 2,172 — — —

Held by Bond Trustee:

Federal Agency Securities 4,866,069 — — 1,865,709 3,000,360

Investment Contracts 1,289,551 — — — 1,289,551

Money Market Funds 269,334 269,334 — — —

Total $  46,499,897 40,344,277 — 1,865,709 4,289,911

Authorized Investment Type
Maximum 
Maturity

US Treasury Obligations None

US Agency Securities None

Banker’s Acceptance 360 days

Commercial Paper 270 days

Money Market Mutual Funds N/A

Investment Contracts 20-30 years

Pre-refunded Municipal Bonds None

Repurchase Agreements 1 year

Local Agency Investment Fund N/A

General Obligation Bonds None
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 Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk
Generally, credit risk is the risk related to an issuer of an investment that will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of 

the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 

Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the City’s 

investment policy or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end for each investment type. 

Light and Power Fund

Investment Type Total
Minimum 

Legal Rating

Rating as of Year-End

AAA Aa A Not Rated

Corporate Bonds $    5,027,415 A — 5,027,415 — —

Federal Agency Securities 68,702,072 N/A 68,702,072 — — —

Municipal Bond 5,033,704 N/A 2,001,924 3,031,780 — —

Investment in City Pool 158,167,999 N/A — — — 158,167,999

Money Market Fund 5,632,671 N/A — — — 5,632,671

State Investment Pool 173,927 N/A — — — 173,927

Total $242,737,788 70,703,996 8,059,195 — 163,974,597

Water Fund

Minimum 
Legal Rating

Rating as of Year-End

Investment Type Total AAA Aa A Not Rated

Investment in City Pool $  40,072,771 N/A — — — 40,072,771

State Investment Pool 2,172 N/A — — — 2,172

Held by Bond Trustee:

Federal Agency Securities 4,866,069 N/A 4,866,069 — — —

Investment Contracts 1,289,551 N/A 1,289,551 — — —

Money Market Funds 269,334 A 269,334 — — —

Total $  46,499,897 6,424,954 — — 40,074,943

 
 Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that 

stipulated by the California Government Code. Investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual 

funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total Entity investments are as follows:

Light and Power Fund

Issuer Investment Types Reported Amount

Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal Agency Securities $ 37,240,534

Federal Home Loan Bank Federal Agency Securities 21,656,055

Federal National Mortgage Association Federal Agency Securities 9,805,483

East West Bank Money Market 5,632,669

Water Fund

Issuer Investment Types Reported Amount

Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal Agency Securities $ 1,865,709

Federal National Mortgage Association Federal Agency Securities 3,000,360

FSA Investment Agreement Investment Contracts 1,289,551
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 Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government 

will not be able to recover its deposits or recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The 

custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to 

a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the 

possession of another party. The California Government Code and the City’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy 

requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following 

provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or 

local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law 

(unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at 

least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure 

City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. 

For investments identified herein as held by bond trustee, the bond trustee selects the investment under the terms of the 

applicable trust agreement, acquires the investment, and holds the investment on behalf of the reporting government.

 Investment in State Investment Pool
The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (“LAIF”) that is regulated by the California 

Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the City’s investment 

in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the City’s pro-rata share of the 

fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance 

available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which is recorded on an amortized 

cost basis. 

 Investment in City of Pasadena Investment Pool
The Water and Power Enterprise Funds are voluntary participants in the City of Pasadena’s investment pool managed by 

the City of Pasadena. This pool is governed by and under the regulatory oversight of the Investment Policy adopted by 

the City Council of the City of Pasadena. The Water and Power Enterprise Funds have not adopted an investment policy 

separate from that of the City of Pasadena. The fair value of the Water and Power Enterprise Funds’ investment in this 

pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the Water and Power Enterprise Funds’ 

pro-rata share of the fair value calculated by the City for the entire City portfolio. This pool is unrated. Further information 

about the composition, maturities, and concentrations associated with this pool can be found in the Comprehensive 

Annual Financial Report of the City.

 Fair Value Hierarchy
The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted 

accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset or liability. 

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs. 

Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
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The Company has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2016:

Light and Power Fund

Level

Measure by Fair Value 1 2 3 Total

Corporate Bonds $        — 5,027,415 — 5,027,415

Federal Agency Securities — 68,702,072 — 68,702,072

Municipal Bond — 5,033,704 — 5,033,704

Investment in City Pool — 158,167,999 — 158,167,999

Money Market Funds — 5,632,671 — 5,632,671

State Investment Pool — 173,927 — 173,927

Total $        — 242,737,788 — 242,737,788

Water Fund

Level

Measure by Fair Value 1 2 3 Total

Investment in City Pool $        — 40,072,771 — 40,072,771

State Investment Pool — 2,172 — 2,172

Held by Bond Trustee:

Federal Agency Securities — 4,866,069 — 4,866,069

Investment Contracts — 1,289,551 — 1,289,551

Money Market Funds — 269,334 — 269,334

Total $        — 46,499,897 — 46,499,897

(3) Accounts Receivable 
As of June 30, 2016, the accounts receivable are categorized in part as follows: 

Light & Power Fund Water Fund

Accounts receivable $               — 175,456

Accrued revenue receivable 13,474,006 4,037,507

Interest receivable 533,753 148,938

Utility receivable 8,816,541 2,450,287

22,824,300 6,812,188

Less: allowance for uncollectible amounts (652,580) (204,105)

Total  $ 22,171,720 6,608,083

(4) Notes Receivable 
In January 2009, Light and Power utilized $80.0 million of Reserves for Stranded Investment and in return received 

Subordinated Notes totaling $70.0 million from Intermountain Power Agency (“IPA”) to defease some of IPA’s outstanding 

debt service requirement for Intermountain Power Project (“IPP”) bonds. These notes have various maturity dates, and 

the proceeds, when mature, will be used to stabilize future energy costs. The balance of the notes as of June 30, 2016 is 

$36,948,750.
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(5) Capital Assets 
Capital asset activities for the year ended June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Light and Power Fund
Balance at 

June 30, 2015 Additions Deletions
Prior Period 
Adjustments

Balance at 
June 30, 2016

Depreciable assets:

Buildings and improvements $   44,235,920 2,050,959 (419) 2,394 46,288,854

Utility lines, machinery and equipment 602,150,327 19,780,876 (6,449,871) 1,601,649 617,082,981

Total cost of depreciable assets 646,386,247 21,831,835 (6,450,290) 1,604,043 663,371,835

Less accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and improvements (34,005,011) (911,649) 94 — (34,916,566)

Utility lines, machinery and equipment (317,439,494) (23,391,736) 6,153,600 — (334,677,630)

Total accumulated depreciation (351,444,505) (24,303,385) 6,153,694 — (369,594,196)

Net depreciable assets 294,941,742 (2,471,550) (296,596) 1,604,043 293,777,639

Capital assets not depreciated:

Land 2,908,820 — (2,264) 112,997 3,019,553

Construction in progress 181,012,915 63,702,120 (21,869,652) — 222,845,383

Total cost of non-depreciable assets 183,921,735 63,702,120 (21,871,916) 112,997 225,864,936

Capital assets, net $ 478,863,477 61,230,570 (22,168,512) 1,717,040 519,642,575

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2016 was $24,303,385.

Water Fund
Balance at 

June 30, 2015 Additions Deletions
Prior Period 
Adjustments

Balance at 
June 30, 2016

Depreciable assets:

Buildings and improvements $     6,198,227 41,616 — — 6,239,843

Water mains, machinery and equipment 211,827,268 5,259,803 (396,238) (84,803) 216,606,030

Total cost of depreciable assets 218,025,495 5,301,419 (396,238) (84,803) 222,845,873

Less accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and improvements (3,357,233) (26,034) — — (3,383,267)

Water mains, machinery and equipment (80,060,427) (5,945,050) 378,456 — (85,627,021)

Total accumulated depreciation (83,417,660) (5,971,084) 378,456 — (89,010,288)

Net depreciable assets 134,607,835 (669,665) (17,782) (84,803) 133,835,585

Capital assets not depreciated:

Land 1,411,424 — — 166,103 1,577,527

Construction in progress 42,673,608 14,454,498 (5,301,422) — 51,826,684

Total cost of non-depreciable assets 44,085,032 14,454,498 (5,301,422) 166,103 53,404,211

Capital assets, net $ 178,692,867 13,784,833 (5,319,204) 81,300 187,239,796

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2016 was $5,971,084.

(6) Advances To Other Funds 
On May 14, 2012, City Council authorized a loan of $1,100,000 from Light and Power Fund of Pasadena Water and Power 

(“PWP”) to Public Works Department (“Public Works”) of the City and appropriated it to the Fiscal Year 2013 Capital 

Improvement Program (“CIP”) Budget for the repair and/or replacement of existing street lighting system CIP projects. 

Public Works agreed to repay the loan to PWP in ten equal annual installments of $110,000 each on January 31 of each 

year starting on January 31, 2014 and ending on January 31, 2023. The ending balance as of June 30, 2016 is $770,000.
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(7) Changes in Long-Term Debt 
Changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2016 are as follows:

(8)   Revenue Bonds
   Light and Power Fund

Outstanding at 
June 30, 2016

2008 Electric Revenue Bonds
On January 28, 2008, the City issued $58,555,000 of 2008 Electric Revenue Bonds to finance the costs of 

the acquisition and construction of additions, extensions, and improvements of the City’s Power distribution 

system as identified in the Power Master Plan; and the modernization of the existing warehouse facility. 

Interest is payable semi-annually on December 1 and June 1 commencing June 1, 2009. The rate of interest 

varies from 4.0% to 5.0% per annum. Principal is payable in annual installments ranging from $1,080,000 

to $3,450,000 commencing June 1, 2009 and ending June 1, 2037. This debt issue is subject to a reserve 

requirement in conjunction with non-subordinate (parity) debt issued by the City. The City is in compliance 

with the revenue rate covenant requiring net income of the electric system to be at least equal to 1.10 times 

the amount necessary to pay principal and interest on the bonds and all other parity bonds. $48,615,000

2009 Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds
On November 24, 2009, the City issued $40,655,000 of 2009 Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds to advance 

refund a portion of the City’s outstanding 1998 Electric Revenue /Refunding Bonds and pay the costs of 

issuance of the 2009 Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds. The refunding has generated a net present value 

savings of $3.62 million or 8.33% of the refunded bonds. Interest is payable semi-annually on February 1 

and August 1, commencing February 1, 2010. The rate of interest varies from 4.0% to 5.0% per annum. 

Principal is payable in annual installments ranging from $2,160,000 to $3,510,000 commencing August 1, 

2011 and ending August 1, 2024. This debt issue is subject to a reserve requirement in conjunction with non-

subordinate (parity) debt issued by the City. The City is in compliance with the revenue rate covenant requiring 

net income of the electric system to be at least equal to 1.10 times the amount necessary to pay principal and 

interest on the bonds and all other parity bonds. This refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service 

payments over the next 15 years by $5,002,513 and has resulted in an economic gain of $3,621,076. 25,545,000
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Light and Power Fund
Balance at 

June 30, 2015 Additions Reductions
Balance at 

June 30, 2016
Due Within 
One Year

Due in 
More Than 
One Year

Revenue bonds:

2008 Electric Revenue Bonds $ 50,035,000 — (1,420,000) 48,615,000 1,485,000 47,130,000

2009 Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds 28,750,000 — (3,205,000) 25,545,000 3,510,000 22,035,000

2010 Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds 27,520,000 — (4,230,000) 23,290,000 4,365,000 18,925,000

2012A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds 6,995,000 — (485,000) 6,510,000 505,000 6,005,000

2013A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds 80,485,000 — — 80,485,000 1,425,000 79,060,000

Bond Premiums (Discounts) 8,989,374 — (699,496) 8,289,878 — 8,289,878

Total Light & Power Fund Long-Term Liabilities $202,774,374 — (10,039,496) 192,734,878 11,290,000 181,444,878

Water Fund
Balance at 

June 30, 2015 Additions Reductions
Balance at 

June 30, 2016
Due Within 
One Year

Due in 
More Than 
One Year

Revenue bonds:

2007 Water Revenue Bonds $ 17,915,000 — (545,000) 17,370,000 565,000 16,805,000

2010A Water Revenue Bonds (Taxable Build America) 25,425,000 — — 25,425,000 — 25,425,000

2010B Water Revenue Bonds (Tax-Exempt) 3,385,000 — (620,000) 2,765,000 645,000 2,120,000

2011A Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds 25,700,000 — (2,140,000) 23,560,000 2,420,000 21,140,000

Bond Premiums (Discounts) 2,924,553 — (186,987) 2,737,566 — 2,737,566

Total Water Fund Long-Term Liabilities $ 75,349,553 — (3,491,987) 71,857,566 3,630,000 68,227,566
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2010 Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds
On August 3, 2010, the City issued $36,320,000 of 2010A Series Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds, to 

refund a portion of the outstanding 2002 Electric Revenue Bonds and pay the issuance costs of the 2010 

Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds. The refunding has generated a net present value savings of $3.18 

million or 8.9% of the refunded bonds. Interest is payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 

commencing December 1, 2010 at rates varying from 2.0% to 4.0% per annum. Principal is payable in 

annual installments ranging from $180,000 to $5,000,000 commencing June 1, 2011 and ending June 1, 

2021. This debt issue is subject to a reserve requirement in conjunction with non-subordinate (parity) 

debt issued by the City. The City is in compliance with the revenue rate covenant requiring net income of 

the electric system to be at least equal to 1.10 times the amount necessary to pay principal and interest 

on the bonds and all other parity bonds. This refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service 

payments over the next 11 years by $4.19 million and has resulted in an economic gain of $3.18 million. 23,290,000

2012A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds
On August 6, 2012, the City Council approved the issuance of Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2012A 

Series to partially refinance the current outstanding 2002 bonds and fully refund the outstanding 2003 

bonds in the amount of up to $15 million. On September 24, 2012, the City sold $11,780,000 Electric 

Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2012A Series on a competitive basis. The purpose of the refunding was 

purely for economic reasons. The City realized a present value savings of $1.1 million or 10.15% present 

value savings rate. The true interest cost on the financing was 1.54%.  6,510,000

2013A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds
On September 30, 2013 approved issuance of up to $85 million on the Electric Revenue Refunding 

Bonds, 2013A Series to fully refund the outstanding 2002 bonds, fund a Parity Reserve Fund, and to 

finance a portion of the costs of acquisition and construction of certain improvements to the Electrical 

System. On December 3, 2013, the City sold $80,485,000 Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2013A 

Series on a competitive basis. The City realized a present value savings of $330,000. The true interest 

cost on the financing was 4.74%. 80,485,000

Total Light and Power Fund Revenue Bonds $184,445,000

Water Fund
Outstanding at 

June 30, 2016

2007 Water Revenue Bonds
On April 23, 2007, the City issued $21,550,000 of 2007 Water Revenue Bonds to finance the costs of 

acquisition and construction of certain capital improvements to the Water System. Interest is payable semi-

annually on December 1 and June 1 commencing June 1, 2008. The rate of interest varies from 3.5% to 

4.44% per annum. Principal is payable semi-annually on December 1 and June 1, commencing June 1, 2008. 

The rate of interest varies from 3.5% to 4.44% per annum. Principal is payable in annual installments ranging 

from $395,000 to $1,155,000 commencing June 1, 2008 and ending June 1, 2036. This debt issue is subject 

to a reserve requirement in conjunction with non-subordinate (parity) debt issued by the City. The City is in 

compliance with the revenue rate covenant requiring net income of the Water System to be at least equal to 

1.10 times the amount necessary to pay principal and interest on the bonds and all other parity bonds. $17,370,000
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2010 Water Revenue Bonds
On December 23, 2010, the City issued $30,000,000 of 2010 Water Revenue Bonds consisting of $25,425,000 

of 2010A Series Taxable Build America Bonds (“2010A Bonds”) and $4,575,000 of 2010B Series Tax-Exempt 

(“2010B Bonds”). The 2010 Water Revenue Bonds were issued to finance the costs of acquisition and 

construction of certain capital improvements to the Water System, to make an additional deposit to the Parity 

Reserve Fund, and to pay costs of issuance of the bonds. Interest on the 2010A Bonds, which varies from 6.0% 

to 7.3% per annum, is payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1, commencing June 1, 2011. Principal 

is payable in annual installments ranging from $775,000 to $1,910,000 commencing June 1, 2021 and ending 

June 1, 2040. Interest on the 2010B Bonds, with rates varying from 3.0% to 5.0% per annum, is payable 

semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 commencing June 1, 2011. Principal is payable in annual installments 

ranging from $585,000 to $740,000 commencing June 1, 2014 and ending June 1, 2020. This debt issue is 

subject to a reserve requirement in conjunction with non-subordinate (parity) debt issued by the City. The City 

is in compliance with the revenue rate covenant requiring net income of the water system to be at least equal 

to 1.10 times the amount necessary to pay principal and interest on the bonds and all other parity bonds. 28,190,000

2011A Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds
On December 20, 2011, the City issued $29,770,000 of 2011A Series Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds, 

to refund a portion of the outstanding 2003 Water Revenue Bonds and pay the issuance costs of the 2011 

Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds. The refunding has generated a net present value savings of $3.5 million 

or 11.36% savings of the refunded bonds. Interest is payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 

commencing June 1, 2012 at coupon rates varying from 3.0% to 5.0% per annum. Principal is payable in 

annual installments ranging from $25,000 to $2,490,000 commencing June 1, 2013 and ending June 1, 

2033. This debt issue is subject to a reserve requirement in conjunction with non-subordinate (parity) debt 

issued by the City. The City is in compliance with the revenue rate covenant requiring net income of the 

water system to be at least equal to 1.10 times the amount necessary to pay principal and interest on the 

bonds and all other parity bonds. 23,560,000

Total Water Fund Revenue Bonds $69,120,000

(9) Stranded Investments 
In November 2006, the City Council approved the Stranded Investment Reserve (“SIR”) Utilization Plan (“Plan”). In January 2009, 

in accordance with the Plan and a previously approved Prepayment Agreement (“Agreement”), PWP utilized approximately $80.0 

million of the reserve funds to complete an economic defeasance of selected bonds for IPP. As authorized in the Agreement, the 

IPA issued approximately $70.0 million of subordinated notes to PWP, the payments for which will offset a portion of the debt 

service associated with the economically-defeased bonds, thereby reducing the cost of energy purchased from IPP. 

As of June 30, 2016, the Stranded Investment Reserve balance was about $106.45 million. The details of the additions and 

subtractions from the Reserve that occurred during fiscal year 2016 are shown below. 

Restricted Cash and Investment

Beginning balance  $ 68,073,474

Interest earnings 1,154,944

Market gains (losses) 275,418

Restricted cash and investment ending balance  $ 69,503,836

IPA Subordinated Notes

Balance at 
June 30, 2015 Reduction

Balance at 
June 30, 2016

Notes Receivable  $ 42,490,418 (5,541,668) 36,948,750

Total IPA Subordinated Notes  $ 42,490,418 (5,541,668) 36,948,750

Restricted for Stranded Investments at June 30, 2016  $106,452,586

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Pasadena Water & Power  |  2016 Annual Report   37    36 Pasadena Water & Power  |  2016 Annual Report



(10) Deferred Inflow of Resources
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, the City has recorded certain deferred inflows related to the pension benefit 

provided to employees. At June 30, 2016, the Light and Power Fund and Water Fund had a balance of $5,625,359 and 

$1,739,682, respectively.

(11) Transfers 
The following is a summary of transfers in and out for the year ended June 30, 2016: 

Transfer From Transfer To Amount

Light and Power Fund City of Pasadena  $ 17,589,165 (1)
Water Fund City of Pasadena 2,014,557 (2)

City of Pasadena Light and Power Fund 4,908,006 (3)

(1)  Light and Power contributed $17,589,165 to the General Fund for the payment of interest and principal on City bonds, 

municipal improvements, and other purposes. 

(2)  The Water Fund transferred $2,014,557 to the General Fund. Of this amount, $1,664,557 was transferred to cover City 

services which directly benefited the Water Fund, and $350,000 supports Hahamongna Watershed Park operations. 

(3)  The Underground Utility Fund transferred $4,908,006 to the Light and Power Fund to cover costs of certain electrical 

undergrounding projects.

(12) Self-Insurance 
The City maintains self-insurance and excess insurance programs for general liability, and City maintains self-insurance for 

workers compensation. Liability claims are self-administered. All City workers compensation claims (Public Safety (Fire and 

Police); and miscellaneous, or Citywide) workers compensation claims are administered by a Third Party Administrator, with 

claim dates of July 1, 2012 through all new claims. The City maintains a few self-administered claims with dates before 

July 1, 2012, and high value self-administered claims. For the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 excess liability insurance 

has been purchased with limits of $20 million excess of a $3 million self-insured retention. Excess worker’s compensation 

insurance with a $5,000,000 Self Insurance Retention was purchased for FY 2015-2016.

The City bought All Risk Property Insurance on all its buildings, with a separate Equipment Breakdown policy for production 

facilities at the power plant, with a combined total scheduled insured value in excess of $1.7 billion. Limit of Liability under 

“all risk” policy is $250,000,000, with various sub-limits. The deductible on this policy ranges from $5,000 to $25,000, 

depending on coverage triggered. Exclusions include earthquake, collapse of buildings and nuclear hazard. There have 

been no new claims during FY 2016 under either of these policies. Limit of Liability under the Equipment Breakdown policy 

is $100,000,000 with various sub-limits; and a deductible of $25,000. Exclusions under this policy include earthquake, 

fungus, and contingent business income/extra expense.

In addition to the coverage afforded by the All Risk Property and Equipment Breakdown policies, the City bought Property 

(Power Plant) / Boiler and Machinery insurance with total insured value of $226,596,550. Limit of Liability is $100,000,000 

with various sub-limits; and deductible of $1,000,000 for property damage or $1,500,000 for loss or damage due to 

breakdown of any of three gas turbine units. There has been a significant increase in the total insured value based on the 

addition of GT5. The City has received no new claims under this policy, for FY 2016.

Additional information regarding the City’s self-insurance program can be found in the City’s Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report. 

(13) Pension Plans 
Each full-time employee and each part-time employee (with 1,000 hours or more of service) of Pasadena Water and Power 

is a member of either the Fire or Police Retirement System (“FPRS”) or California Public Employees’ Retirement System 

(“CalPERS”). The City has issued pension bonds to fund the unfunded pension obligation of the City. A portion of this 

debt is attributable to Pasadena Water and Power employees. Additional information regarding the City’s defined benefit 

pension plans and related pension obligation bonds can be found in the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
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(14) Commitments and Contingencies 

 Jointly Governed Organizations 

“Take or Pay” Contracts 

The City’s electric operation has entered into various “Take or Pay” contracts to provide for current and future electric 

generating capacity and transmission of energy for City customers. The City is obligated to pay the amortized cost of 

indebtedness regardless of the ability of the contracting agency to provide electricity and/or transmission, as applicable. 

The original indebtedness will be amortized by adding the financing costs to purchase energy over the life of the contract. 

A summary of the City of Pasadena’s “Take or Pay” contracts (by project) as of June 30, 2016, and its estimated contractual 

obligations through 2036, based on projected energy prices (in millions) are as follows: 

(in millions)

SCPPA Projects

IPA 
Projects

Palo 
Verde STS

Mead-
Adelanto

Mead-
Phoenix Magnolia Milford I

Prepaid 
Natural 

Gas

Bonds and Notes sold (outstanding) $ 1,249 24 608 91 28 304 196 306

Interest 114 1 155 11 3 131 82 196

Combined total debt service 1,363 25 763 102 31 435 278 502

City percentage 5.9% 4.4% 5.9% 8.6% 13.8% 6.4% 2.5% 16.5%

City obligations $       80 1 45 9 4 28 7 83

Intermountain Power Authority 

The Intermountain Power Authority (“IPA”), a subdivision of the State of Utah, was formed in January 1974 to finance the 

construction of a 1,800-megawatt (“MW”) coal-fueled generating plant consisting of two generating units located near 

Lynndyl, Utah. The City has two separate contracts with the IPA and certain Utah participants, namely the Power Sales 

Entitlement contract and the Excess Sales contract, which currently provide the City with a 107 MW (5.9%) maximum 

contractual entitlement in the facility. The City is obligated for 79 MW or 4.409% of the generation through the Power 

Sales contract. The Excess Sales Agreement with IPA, agent for the Utah Municipal Purchasers and the Cooperative 

Purchasers, entitles the City to an additional share of 29 megawatts or 1.591%. Approximately 750 gigawatt hours 

(“GWh”) of energy are delivered to the City from IPP each year. 

Southern California Public Power Authority 

The City of Pasadena Light and Power Fund joined the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) on 

November 1, 1980. This authority, consisting of the cities of Los Angeles, Pasadena, Anaheim, Azusa, Banning, Riverside, 

Colton, Vernon, Burbank, Glendale, Cerritos, San Marcos, and the Imperial Irrigation District, was formed for the purpose 

of planning, financing, developing, acquiring, and constructing future power and transmission resources. The Joint Powers 

Agreement has a term of fifty years. The City entered into seven projects with SCPPA.

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station 

The first project in which SCPPA participated is a 4,010 MW nuclear fuel generation plant in Arizona (Palo Verde). The Palo 

Verde Nuclear Project consists of three (3) units, each having an electric output of approximately 1,270 MW. Units 1 and 

2 began commercial operation in February and September 1986, respectively; and Unit 3 began commercial operation in 

January 1988. Pasadena’s entitlement share of Palo Verde generation is 4.4% or approximately 9.9 MW.

Southern Transmission System (STS) 

SCPPA financed a second project called the Southern Transmission System (“STS”), which transmits power from the IPP 

to Southern California. The 500 kilovolt (“kV”) direct current (“DC”) is rated at 1,920 MW. The City’s share of the line is 

5.883% or approximately 136 MW. STS commenced commercial operations in July 1986. 

Mead-Adelanto Transmission System 

SCPPA financed a third project called the Mead-Adelanto Transmission System consisting of a 202-mile long 500 kV 

alternating current (“AC”) transmission line extending between the Adelanto substation in Southern California and the 
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Marketplace substation in Nevada. Commercial operations commenced in April 1996. Nine members own one-third of 

Mead-Adelanto through SCPPA. The City is obligated for 75 MW or 8.589% of the SCPPA entitlement. 

Mead-Phoenix Transmission System 

SCPPA financed a fourth project called the Mead-Phoenix Transmission System consisting of a 256-mile long 500 kV AC 

transmission line extending between the Westwing substation in Arizona and the Marketplace substation in Nevada. 

Commercial operations commenced in April 1996. SCPPA has executed an ownership agreement providing it with 

member-related ownership shares of 13.866% in the Westwing–Mead project component, 11.364% in the Mead 

Substation project component, and a 14.458% in the Mead–Marketplace project component. The City has entered into 

a transmission service contract with SCPPA, which obligates the City to pay the cost of its share of the transfer capability 

of 13.882% or 158 combined MW. 

Magnolia Project 

SCPPA financed a fifth project called the “Magnolia Power Project” consisting of a natural gas-fired generating facility with 

a nominally rated net base capacity of 242 MW. The facility is located on an existing generating site in the City of Burbank, 

California, including necessary and appurtenant facilities and equipment thereto, the applicable portion of any common facilities, 

and interconnection facilities. The Project was constructed for the primary purpose of providing the participants in the 

Project with firm capacity and energy to help meet their power and energy requirements in 2005 and thereafter. Commercial 

operations commenced September 2005. SCPPA owns the Magnolia Power Project, and six SCPPA members have contracted 

with SCPPA for 100% of its output. The City of Pasadena’s indenture cost share is 6.399% or 14.8 MW of base capacity. 

Milford I Wind Project 

In April 2007, the City approved participation in the Milford Wind Corridor Phase I, LLC Wind Generation Project, a new 

200 MW wind-generating facility constructed in Millard County, Utah and a power sales agreement with SCPPA for a 5 

MW or 2.5% of 200 MW share of the project. The project serves the goals established by the City’s Renewable Portfolio 

Standard for PWP and aids the City in achieving its environmental goals. The project began commercial operation in 

November 2009. 

Natural Gas Development Project 

On July 1, 2004, nine SCPPA members, including Pasadena, signed a Development Agreement to jointly examine the 

feasibility and economies of purchasing a share in a natural gas reserve field. On July 1, 2005, Pasadena and five out of 

the eight original interested parties signed a first agreement with SCPPA, which entitled the City to purchase up to 1,000 

million British Thermal Units (“MMBtu”) per day output share of natural gas reserves. 

Prepaid Natural Gas Project 

On October 2007, SCPPA and the City of Pasadena along with the Cities of Anaheim, Burbank, Colton, and Glendale 

entered into separate Prepaid Natural Gas Program Gas Supply Agreements (Gas Project No.1). Gas Project No.1 primarily 

consists of the acquisition by SCPPA of the right to receive an aggregate amount of approximately 135 billion cubic feet of 

natural gas from J. Aron pursuant to the terms of the Prepaid Natural Gas Sales Agreements. The gas is delivered by J. Aron 

to SCPPA at designated delivery points on the natural gas pipelines that serve each City, in specified daily quantities each 

month, beginning July 1, 2008, over approximately a 30-year term of each of the Prepaid Natural Gas Sales Agreements. 

Gas sold under the Agreements is priced at the applicable Monthly Index Price for the primary delivery point less a specified 

discount. Each agreement provides for the sale to the Cities on a pay-as-you-go basis. The electric utility systems owned 

by each City in part provide gas-fired electric utility service to retail consumers located in their respective areas. The City of 

Pasadena’s participation share is 16.5% or an average daily quantity of 2,000 (MMBtu). 

Anschutz-Pinedale Gas Reserves Project 

On July 1, 2005, SCPPA successfully closed the first transaction to purchase an interest in natural gas reserves under the 

Natural Gas Development Project to help ensure a stable fuel supply for PWP’s power plants. It will help ensure a stable 

supply for PWP’s power plants and stabilize the most volatile component of PWP’s operating expenses. SCPPA and other 

participants, including Los Angeles Department of Water and Power and the Turlock Irrigation District, signed purchase 

agreements with Anschutz Pinedale Corp. in Denver to buy a portion of the company’s natural gas reserves in Wyoming 

for $300 million. Other participating cities include Anaheim, Burbank, Colton, and Glendale. The agreement gives PWP 

a 2.38% ownership in the acquisition at a total cost of $6.5 million including development and transaction costs. 
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Barnett Gas Reserves Project 

On October 26, 2006, SCPPA secured a second property interest in a natural gas reserve field under the Gas Development 

Agreement located at the Barnett Shale Formation in Texas. Pasadena’s SCPPA partners in this project include the cities 

of Anaheim, Burbank, and Colton. The Barnett property, in its early stages of development, initially provided up to 250 

MMBtu per day of gas at less than $6 per MMBtu. However, additional capital development (drilling) of the property 

resulted in greater daily volumes available for participants. 

Additional financial information on the SCPPA may be obtained by contacting the City of Pasadena Department of Water 

and Power at 150 South Los Robles, Suite 200, Pasadena, CA 91101. 

 Challenges 
In response to California Assembly Bill 1890 (“AB1890”), the City chose to open its market to competition on January 1, 

2000. The City has long-term contracts with IPA and SCPPA, most of which obligate the City to purchase power and/or 

services at cost, which was projected to be higher than market in a deregulated environment. As a result, the City was 

faced with a “stranded investment” with a value estimated to be approximately $145.5 million in 2006. AB1890 provided 

for the recovery of this stranded investment through a “Competition Transition Charge” on each customer’s utility bill. The 

City stopped collecting this charge after July 1, 2002. A competitive financial strategy, which includes a ten-year financial 

planning model developed in 1996 and updated annually, serves as the blueprint for managing the Utility through the 

open market transition. The strategy includes recovery and elimination of the stranded investment with minimal impact on 

customer rates over approximately five years. As of June 30, 2016, the City’s Reserve for Stranded Investment fund balance 

was approximately $106.45 million. The City has implemented the approved Stranded Investment Utilization Plan by direct 

defeasance of the debt service of IPP outstanding bonds and mitigation of variable energy costs. 

 Other 
Certain federal and state revenues are received for specific purposes and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. 

City management is of the opinion that adjustments, if any, resulting from such audits will not be significant. 

 Litigation 
A number of suits and claims are pending against Pasadena Water and Power arising in the normal course of operations. 

In the opinion of management, the results of such legal actions will not have a material adverse effect on the financial 

position or results of operations of Pasadena Water and Power. 

(15) Pledged Revenue 
Pasadena Water and Power has a number of outstanding debt issuances that are collateralized by pledged electric and water 

revenues. The amount and term of the remainder of these outstanding debts are presented in Note 8. The purpose of the debt 

issuances was for the financing of certain Light and Power and Water projects. For the current year, debt service payments as 

a percentage of the pledged gross revenue (net of certain expenses) are indicated in the table below. These percentages also 

approximate the relationship of debt service of pledged revenues for the remainder of the term of these debts: 

Description of 
Pledged Revenue

Annual Amount of 
Pledged Revenue 
(net of expenses) 

(in thousands)

Annual Debt 
Service 

Payments 
(in thousands)

Debt Service as a 
Percentage of 

Pledged Revenue

Light & Power Revenues $ 57,873 17,687 31%

Water Revenues    16,038   7,086 44%
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(16) Restatement of Beginning Net Position
The accompanying financial statements reflect adjustments that resulted in the restatement of beginning net position of 

the Light and Power and Water Fund. In fiscal year 2016, the City conducted a detailed reconciliation of the capital asset 

as part of the new ERP system implementation. The reconciliation identified capital assets with incorrect values, assets that 

we were not able to identify, and variances between the actual asset inventoried and the assets on the book as of June 30, 

2015. This reconciliation resulted in the restatement of the beginning net position of the Governmental Activities and the 

Business-type Activities of the Primary Government.

The following schedule summarizes the effect of the prior period adjustment to the beginning net positions as of July 1, 2015:

Light & Power Fund Water Fund

Net Position at July 1, 2015 $ 519,909,622 143,596,828

Capital Assets Conversion 1,717,040 81,292

Net Position, as restated $ 521,626,662 143,678,120

(17) Subsequent Events 
Subsequent events were evaluated through the date of the audit report.

2016A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds

On November 7, 2016, the City issued $119,440,000 of 2016A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds. The purpose of the 

Bonds are to refund a portion of the outstanding 2008 Bonds, to finance the costs of acquisition and construction of 

certain improvements to the Electric System of the City, repay an outstanding balance on a Line of Credit, and to fund 

a deposit to the parity reserve fund, and to pay costs of issuance of the 2016A Bonds. The City realized a present value 

savings of $5.8M on the refunding of the 2008 Bonds. 

2017A Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds

On January 23, 2017, City Council adopted a resolution authorizing the invitation of bids for the of water revenue bonds, 

2017 series of City, approving a notice of intention to sell bonds, a preliminary official statement, a notice inviting bids, 

and other authorizing actions related to the future sale of bonds. The issue is not to exceed aggregate principal amount of 

$17,370,000 and will be used to refinance 2007 Series Water Revenue Bonds. At the time of approval the City anticipated 

a possible economic savings of $1.5 million and will only proceed with the refunding if it can attain a net present value 

savings of at least $1.0 million.

GT-5 Local Power Generation Unit Now Operational

With final certification on December 20, 2016, to achieve commercial operation, Gas Turbine 5 (“GT-5”) is now fully 

functional, replacing a 51 year old steam generating plant. GT-5 provides Pasadena with net 68 MW of clean, natural-

gas fueled power that is the most efficient and environmentally “clean” unit in its class. Its quick-start capability provides 

Pasadena with the flexibility needed to maintain reliability as it can generate power within minutes as opposed to the 

72-hour start up time needed by its predecessor. In addition, GT-5 is available for schedule into the California Independent 

System Operator to deliver energy for regional requirements that may also provide revenue to the Light and Power Fund.
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MEASUREMENT PERIOD 2016 2015

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

Service Cost $     4,067,785 4,355,760

Interest 17,411,840 17,237,556

Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience (3,567,591) —

Changes in Assumptions (4,107,905) —

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Employee Contributions (11,541,921) (11,107,063)

Net Change in Total Pension Liability 2,262,208 10,486,253

Total Pension Liability – Beginning 243,695,988 233,209,735

Total Pension Liability – Ending (a) $ 245,958,196 243,695,988

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Contribution – Employer $     4,846,845 4,657,861

Contribution – Employee 2,093,924 2,756,106

Net Investment Income 4,076,489 27,899,638

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Employee Contributions (11,541,921) (11,107,063)

Plan to Plan Resource Movement 173 —

Administrative Expense (204,025) —

Other Changes in Fiduciary Net Position (121,652) —

Net Change in Fiduciary Net Position (850,167) 24,206,542

Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Beginning 185,681,329 161,474,787

Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Ending (b) $ 184,831,162 185,681,329

Plan Net Pension Liability/(Assets) – Ending (a) – (b) $   61,127,034 58,014,659

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 75.15% 76.19%

Covered-Employee Payroll $   25,928,148 26,992,380

Plan Net Pension Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll 235.76% 214.93%

Notes to Schedule: 
Benefit Changes: The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan changes which occurred after June 30, 2014. This 
applies for voluntary benefit changes as well as any offers of Two Years Additional Service Credit (a.k.a. Golden Handshakes).

Changes of Assumptions: The discount rate was changed from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense) to 7.65 percent.

CITY OF PASADENA 
Water and Power Enterprise Funds 

Miscellaneous Plan 
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios 

As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2016 2015

Actuarially Determined Contribution $    5,641,466 4,533,827

Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution (5,641,466) (4,533,827)

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $                 — —

Covered-Employee Payroll  $  25,928,148 25,711,112

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll 21.76% 17.63%

Notes to Schedule:

Validation Date: June 30, 2014

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Amortization method For details, see June 30, 2011 Funding Valuation Report

Assets valuation method Actuarial Value of Assets. For details, see June 30, 2011 Funding Valuation Report

Inflation 2.75%

Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service

Payroll Growth 3.00%

Investment rate of return 7.65% net of pension investment and administrative expenses, including inflation

Retirement age The probabilities of retirement are based on the 2010 CalPERS Experience Study for 
the period from 1997 to 2007.

Mortality The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table 
includes 20 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For 
more specific details on this table, please refer to the 2014 experience study report.

CITY OF PASADENA 
Water and Power Enterprise Funds 

Miscellaneous Plan 
Schedule of Plan Contributions 

As of June 30, for the Last Ten Fiscal Years
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CITY OF PASADENA | Statistical Section    
POWER DIVISION TEN-YEAR OPERATIONS SUMMARY

Fiscal Year FY 2016 FY 20151 FY 20141 FY 2013 FY 2012 FY 2011 FY 2010 FY 2009 FY 2008 FY 2007

Financial Data (in thousands)

Operating Revenue $ 181,348 186,377 170,255 169,546 163,235 167,565 165,102 174,901 162,589 148,523

Sales to Other Utilities 2,256 3,764 4,021 6,522 8,963 7,199 7,251 10,774 14,114 5,012

PTO – TRR2 13,527 13,608 13,898 14,003 13,753 12,229 11,343 7,298 8,340 10,581

Other Income3 15,360 16,084 13,513 18,352 10,184 13,948 21,652 14,263 17,639 23,412

Total Revenues 212,491 219,833 201,687 208,423 196,135 200,941 205,348 207,236 202,682 187,528

Fuel – Retail 5,617 7,636 8,029 10,808 7,294 5,587 9,182 17,800 12,958 8,188

Fuel – Wholesale 741 2,012 2,131 3,740 4,066 4,166 4,575 1,667 1,307 785

Purchased Power – Retail 86,162 87,701 123,350 95,058 87,900 89,490 76,655 78,575 90,519 80,000

Purchased Power – Wholesale 1,185 963 1,072 1,021 461 755 75 3,332 — —

Other Production 10,189 8,619 8,447 8,243 8,351 7,823 7,033 7,797 6,624 6,533

Transmission and Distribution 14,250 13,708 15,433 14,948 15,161 13,646 13,063 12,505 12,444 9,757

Administrative and General Expenses 15,745 15,508 27,239 13,100 14,228 11,458 11,552 10,947 9,053 8,922

Commercial Expense 12,462 11,663 12,239 12,433 11,866 10,037 11,901 13,348 7,597 6,432

Depreciation 24,303 18,656 18,279 18,295 18,109 18,184 17,490 16,737 15,708 14,654

Interest Expense 4,204 4,556 13,707 7,723 5,955 6,021 7,205 7,720 6,508 5,914

Transfer to General Fund 17,589 16,122 14,682 14,093 15,861 13,492 16,973 12,922 11,341 5,898

Total Expenses 192,447 187,144 244,608 199,462 189,252 180,659 175,704 183,350 174,059 147,083

Net Income $  20,044 32,689 (42,921) 8,961 6,883 20,282 29,644 23,886 28,623 40,445

Total Net Position at End of Year $ 541,670 521,627 488,938 530,142 521,181 514,297 493,809 464,165 440,279 411,545

Outstanding Long-Term Debt 184,445 193,785 202,735 134,485 142,900 150,845 155,510 165,835 173,045 121,695

Operating and Usage Data (in MWh)

Energy Generated 48,489 83,296 75,838 168,470 147,749 106,147 123,757 119,556 86,898 57,562

Energy Purchased 1,099,525 1,101,285 1,127,617 1,215,779 1,248,368 1,286,858 1,295,905 1,429,363 1,526,635 1,495,239

Total Energy Delivered 1,148,014 1,184,581 1,203,455 1,384,249 1,396,117 1,393,005 1,419,662 1,548,919 1,613,533 1,552,801

Total Retail Energy Sales (MWh)4 1,095,084 1,129,617 1,109,888 1,127,252 1,114,111 1,159,581 1,184,344 1,245,009 1,231,414 1,243,943

Total Wholesale Energy Sales 310 30,969 36,811 185,361 199,045 169,402 164,215 118,231 315,484 122,496

Total Energy Sales 1,095,394 1,160,586 1,146,699 1,312,613 1,313,156 1,328,983 1,348,559 1,363,240 1,546,898 1,366,439

System Peak (MW) 307 316 299 292 307 320 293 287 313 316

Number of Retail Services 65,611 65,559 65,034 64,926 64,836 63,950 63,843 63,590 62,885 62,799

Average Annual Residential Usage (kWh) 5,753 5,731 5,605 5,926 5,696 5,781 5,947 6,156 6,231 6,221

1 Amounts restated
2 Participating Transmission Owner – Transmission Revenue Requirement
3 Includes transfer-in from City, Contribution in Aid of Construction (“CIAC”), and interest income
4 Includes unbilled MWh
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Retail Electricity Sales
Wholesale 

Energy Sales 
to Other 
Utilities1 Residential2

Commercial 
& Industrial2

Street Lights 
& Traffic 
Signals2 Other4 Total Total Sales

Revenue from Sales of Electricity 
Year Ended June 30

2016 $2,256,353 59,547,961 119,713,980 2,013,250 15,665,912 196,941,102 199,197,455

2015 3,763,555 57,904,418 119,602,405 2,031,654 20,446,192 199,984,669 203,748,224

Increase (Decrease) (1,507,202) 1,643,543 111,575 (18,404) (4,780,280) (3,043,567) (4,550,769)

Percentage Change -40.0% 2.8% 0.1% -0.9% -23.4% -1.5% -2.2%

Megawatt-Hours Sold 
Year Ended June 30

2016 310 326,023 755,510 13,384 167 1,095,084 1,095,394

2015 30,969 324,656 768,735 13,423 22,803 1,129,617 1,160,586

Increase (Decrease) (30,659) 1,367 (13,225) (39) (22,636) (34,533) (65,192)

Percentage Change -99.0%5 0.4% -1.7% -0.3% -99.3% -3.1% -5.6%

Average Billing Price per Kilowatt-Hour 
Year Ended June 30

2016 N/A $  0.183 0.158 0.150 N/A 0.180 N/A

2015 N/A   0.178 0.156 0.151 N/A 0.177 N/A

Increase (Decrease) N/A  0.005 0.002 (0.001) N/A 0.003 N/A

Percentage Change N/A 2.8% 1.3% -0.7% N/A 1.7% N/A

Average Number of Services3 
Year Ended June 30

2016 10 56,674 8,937 N/A N/A 65,611 65,621 

2015 10 56,645 8,914 N/A N/A 65,559 65,569 

Increase (Decrease) 0 29 23 N/A N/A 52 52

Percentage Change 0.0% 0.1% 0.3% N/A N/A 0.1% 0.1%

Average Annual Use per Customer (kWh) 
Year Ended June 30

2016 N/A 5,753 84,537 N/A N/A 16,691 16,693 

2015 N/A 5,731 86,239 N/A N/A 17,231 17,700 

Increase (Decrease) N/A 22 (1,702) N/A N/A (540) (1,007)

Percentage Change N/A 0.4% -2.0% N/A N/A -3.1% -5.7%

1 Includes energy, ancillary, deviation and transmission revenues
2 Includes Public Benefits Charge
3 Street Lights and Traffic Signals average number of services are included under the Commercial and Industrial category.
4 Includes:

a) Net Change in Unbilled Revenue (167 MWh) $        72,627
b) CAISO-PTO Revenue 13,527,577
c) Cap and Trade Revenue 1,622,627
d) Connection and Other Service Revenue 443,081

Total $ 15,665,912

5 The decrease is due to Bonneville Power Administration contract that expired in April 2015, which does not have any revenue impact.

CITY OF PASADENA | Statistical Section    
POWER DIVISION SALES COMPARISON
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CITY OF PASADENA | Statistical Section   
POWER DATA

n Purchased  n Generated 

Energy Generated & Purchased 
(in MWh)

0      300,000   600,000  900,000  1,200,000  1,500,000

FY16
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FY14
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FY12 1,248,368 147,749

1,215,779 168,470

1,127,617 75,837

1,101,286 83,296

1,099,525 48,489

 
General Fund Transfer 
(in millions)
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Total = $0.1654 per kWh

Retail Revenue 
Breakdown – 
FY 2016 (per kWh)

$0.0069
$0.0063

$0.0501

$0.0085

$0.0936

Public Benefit 
Charge
Customer Charge

Distribution 
Charge

Transmission 
Charge

Energy Charge $0.0490

$0.0051

$0.0787

$0.0042
$0.0222 Depreciation 

Expense

Interest Expense

Operating & 
Maintenance

Fuel & Gas

Purchased 
Power

Total = $0.1592 per kWh

Retail Expense 
Breakdown – 
FY 2016 (per kWh)
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Fiscal Year FY 2016 FY 20151 FY 20141 FY 2013 FY 2012 FY 2011 FY 2010 FY 2009 FY 2008 FY 2007

Financial Data (in thousands)

Operating Revenue $  50,835 57,440 61,233 58,536 54,301 47,137 43,480 43,095 39,560 39,943

Other Income 7,463 9,672 5,778 7,587 8,453 4,302 4,880 3,837 3,122 3,141

Total Revenues 58,298 67,112 67,011 66,123 62,754 51,439 48,360 46,932 42,682 43,084

Purchased Water 17,216 19,198 22,596 17,953 16,748 14,862 13,646 12,997 14,001 12,155

Sources of Supply 1,167 836 891 977 1,009 966 486 710 549 576

Pumping 2,758 2,981 2,731 3,009 2,996 2,917 2,695 3,044 2,821 3,181

Water Treatment 2,034 3,565 3,761 4,512 3,590 1,504 1,263 1,383 1,256 1,155

Transmission & Distribution 4,474 4,416 5,443 4,434 5,179 5,292 4,815 5,421 4,355 4,307

Administrative & General Expense 6,709 6,517 25,819 5,452 5,159 4,455 4,322 5,055 5,512 4,353

Commercial Expense 1,142 1,298 1,288 1,363 1,732 1,485 1,440 1,560 1,699 1,715

Depreciation 5,971 5,486 5,292 5,370 4,951 4,801 4,451 3,854 3,253 3,055

Interest Expense 3,770 3,904 3,147 3,172 4,306 3,680 2,752 2,853 2,949 2,248

Transfer to General Fund2 2,015 1,922 3,968 3,707 3,313 3,104 3,066 2,872 2,923 2,599

Total Expenses 47,256 50,123 74,936 49,949 48,983 43,066 38,936 39,749 39,318 35,344

Net Income $  11,042 16,989 (7,925) 16,174 13,771 8,373 9,424 7,183 3,364 7,740

Total Net Position at End of Year $154,720 143,678 126,689 134,533 118,359 104,588 96,215 85,480 78,297 74,933

Outstanding Long-term Debt 69,120 72,425 75,610 78,680 81,665 84,845 57,145 59,340 61,435 63,430

Operating and Consumption Data (in thousands of billing units)

Production

Pumped Water 4,761 5,151 4,734 6,363 5,485 4,778 4,609 5,169 5,085 5,952

Purchased Water 6,538 7,602 10,060 7,951 7,823 8,261 8,590 9,860 11,110 11,025

Total Production 11,299 12,753 14,794 14,314 13,308 13,039 13,199 15,029 16,195 16,977

Water Sold 10,318 12,412 13,843 13,168 12,284 11,969 12,504 14,574 15,390 16,088

Water System Losses 981 341 951 1,146 1,024 1,070 695 455 805 889

Number of Services 37,959 37,972 37,974 37,934 37,891 38,067 37,586 37,602 37,783 37,457

System Peak (Acre-feet) 93 111 116 126 115 115 120 133 142 147

1 Amounts restated
2 Includes Hahamongna Transfer of $350

CITY OF PASADENA | Statistical Section    
 WATER DIVISION TEN-YEAR OPERATIONS SUMMARY
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CITY OF PASADENA | Statistical Section    
WATER DIVISION SALES COMPARISON

       Inside          Outside         City
 Fire Service and  
  Miscellaneous1        Total

Revenue from Sales of Water 
Year Ended June 30

2016 $ 40,462,018 7,655,348 1,335,061 1,382,503 50,834,930

2015 44,651,571 8,758,194 1,713,303 2,316,920 57,439,988

Increase (Decrease) (4,189,553) (1,102,846) (378,242) (934,417) (6,605,058)

Percentage Change -9.4% -12.6% -22.1% -40.3% -11.5%

Billing Units Sold 
Year Ended June 30

2016 8,692,597 1,372,096 253,142 2,177 10,320,012

2015 10,352,923 1,683,748 375,281 2,053 12,414,005

Increase (Decrease) (1,660,326) (311,652) (122,139) 124 (2,093,993)

Percentage Change -16.0% -18.5% -32.5% 6.0% -16.9%

Average Price per Billing Unit 
Year Ended June 30

2016 $            4.66 5.58 5.27 — 4.93

2015 4.31 5.20  4.57 — 4.63

Increase (Decrease) 0.35 0.38 0.70 — 0.30

Percentage Change 8.1% 7.3% 15.3% N/A 6.5%

Average Number of Services 
Year Ended June 30

2016 31,211 6,454 294 — 37,959 

2015 31,201 6,466 305 — 37,972 

Increase (Decrease) 10 (12) (11) — (13)

Percentage Change 0.0% -0.2% -3.6% N/A 0.0%

Average Annual Billing Unit per Service2 
Year Ended June 30

2016 279 213 861 — 272

2015 332 260 1,230 — 327

Increase (Decrease) (53) (47) (369) — (55)

Percentage Change -16.0 % -18.1% -30.0% N/A -16.8%

1 Includes:
a) Unbilled Revenue $ (1,126,849)
b) Sales to Other Agencies 1,296,725
c) Miscellaneous Revenues 158,585
d) Fire Protection-Private 1,054,042

 Total $    1,382,503

2 One billing unit equals 100 cubic feet of water, or 748 gallons.
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CITY OF PASADENA | Statistical Section    
WATER DATA

System Peak Demand 
(in acre feet)
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General Fund Reimbursement 
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n Produced    n Purchased 

Retail Revenue 
Breakdown – 
FY 2016 (per billing unit)

Total = $4.76 per billing unit

$1.76

$2.26

$0.74

Commodity 
(incl. PWAC)

CIC

Customer & 
Distribution

$1.61

$0.90

$0.23

$1.64

Labor & Supplies

Depreciation & 
Interest Expense

Purchased Power

Purchased Water

Total = $4.38 per billing unit

Retail Expense 
Breakdown – 
FY 2016 (per billing unit)5
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CITY OF PASADENA | Statistical Section    
PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITY DEBT
Last Ten Fiscal Years (in Thousands)

Light & Power Revenue Bonds

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

June 30

Light & 
Power 

Revenue1

Less 
Operating 
Expenses2

Net Available 
Revenue

Debt Service

Principal3 Interest Coverage

2007 179,700 120,616 59,084 6,940 5,969 457.70%

2008 198,231 140,503 57,728 7,205 6,454 422.64%

2009 202,612 145,971 56,641 7,210 7,908 374.66%

2010 191,927 134,035 57,892 7,510 7,604 383.04%

2011 193,049 142,962 50,087 5,320 6,261 432.49%

2012 192,542 149,327 43,215 7,945 6,181 305.93%

2013 193,400 159,351 34,049 9,060 5,885 227.83%

2014 193,701 197,9404 (4,239) 8,695 7,190 -26.69%

2015 207,745 147,810 59,935 8,950 8,715 339.29%

2016 204,224 146,351 57,873 9,340 8,347 327.21%

Water Revenue Bonds

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

June 30
Water 

Revenue1

Less 
Operating 
Expenses2

Net Available 
Revenue

Debt Service

Principal3 Interest Coverage

2007 40,571 27,442 13,129 1,520 2,176 355.22%

2008 40,874 30,192 10,682 1,995 2,949 216.06%

2009 43,552 30,170 13,382 2,095 2,881 268.93%

2010 43,788 28,667 15,121 2,195 2,780 303.94%

2011 47,353 31,480 15,873 2,300 3,518 272.83%

2012 54,777 36,413 18,364 2,390 4,340 272.87%

2013 58,839 37,699 21,140 2,985 4,188 294.72%

2014 61,772 62,5294 (757) 3,070 4,045 -10.64%

2015 58,039 38,810 19,229 3,185 3,915 270.83%

2016 51,538 35,500 16,038 3,305 3,781 226.33%

1 Total operating revenues including investment earnings
2 Total operating expenses exclusive of depreciation and interest expenses
3 Requirements are reported on a cash basis, excluding premiums
4  Amounts restated due to the implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 – 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

Note:  Details regarding the City’s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements. 
Operating expenses do not include interest or depreciation expenses.
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